Monarch River Academy

2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257

MONARCH RIVER Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax (559) 335-4089
ACADEMY

Regular Scheduled Board Meeting
Monarch River Academy
February 13,2020 — 5:00 pm
337 N Plaza Drive
Visalia CA, 93291

AGENDA
1. Call to Order

Flag Salute
Approval of the Agenda

Public Comments

A

Principal’s Report
a. Student Achievement
b. WASC Accreditation Visit
6. Discussion and Potential Action on the Regular Scheduled January Board
Meeting Minutes and the Special February Board Meeting Minutes
7. Discussion and Potential Action on the Homeless Education Policy
8. Discussion and Potential Action on the Work Sample Policy
9. Discussion and Potential Action on the Local Control Accountability Plan
10. Discussion and Potential Action on the Comprehensive School Safety Plan
11. Board of Directors Requests
12. Announcement of Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting
13. Adjournment
Public comment rules: Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items. Please fill out a
yellow card available at the entrance. Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by
subject area. We ask that comments are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that

as many people as possible may be heard. By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda. The
Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.

Note: Monarch River Academy Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public
meeting process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to
participate in the public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 818-207-3837 at least 48 hours before



Monarch River Academy

2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257

MONARCH RIVER Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax (559) 335-4089
ACADEMY

Regular Scheduled Board Meeting - Monarch River Academy
January 23, 2020 — 5:00 pm
337 N Plaza Drive, Visalia CA, 93291

Attendance: Craig Wheaton, Ashley Wiens, Monique Ouwinga, Sarah Sanchez
Teleconference- Sam Nofziger (Teleconference)

Absent: None

Also Present: Steph Johnson and Dr. Laurie Goodman

Call to Order:
Craig Wheaton called the meeting to order at 5:09 pm.

Flag Salute:
The Flag Salute was conducted.

Approval of the Agenda:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the agenda. Sam Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Public Comments:
None.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Election of Officer Positions:
Craig Wheaton motioned to appoint Sam Nofziger as President. Sarah Sanchez seconded.
-Unanimous.

Sam Nofziger motioned to appoint Craig Wheaton as Secretary. Sarah Sanchez seconded.
-Unanimous.

Sarah Sanchez motioned to appoint Monique Ouwinga as Treasurer. Craig Wheaton
seconded.
-Unanimous.




Monarch River Academy
2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257

MONARCH RIVER Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax(559) 335-4089
ACADEMY
Principal’s Report

The Principal updated the Board of Directors on:
e LCAP Update
e Student Achievement
e January PD Meetings
e Directors and Officers Insurance Deductible
e Form 700s
e SB 126.

Discussion and Potential Action on November Board Meeting Minutes:
Monique Ouwinga motioned to approve the November Board Meeting Minutes. Sarah
Sanchez seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on November — December Financials:
Monique Ouwinga motioned to approve the November — December Financials. Sam
Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Conflict of Interest Code:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the Conflict of Interest Code. Ashley Wiens
seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Anti-Harassment / Discrimination / Intimidation /
Bullying / Retaliation Policy:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the Anti-Harassment / Discrimination / Intimidation /
Bullying / Retaliation Policy. Sam Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Residency Policy:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the Residency Policy. Ashley Wiens seconded.
-Unanimous.




Monarch River Academy

2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257

MONARCH RIVER Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax (559) 335-4089
ACADEMY

Discussion and Potential Action on the Kindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten
Policy:
Ashley Wiens motioned to approve the Kindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten
Policy. Sarah Sanchez seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Foster Youth Policy:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the Foster Youth Policy. Sam Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students
Policy:
Sam Nofziger motioned to approve the Transgender and Gender Nonconforming
Students Policy. Sarah Sanchez seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Induction Policy:
Monique Ouwinga motioned to approve the Induction Policy. Ashley Wiens seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the School Closure Policy:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the School Closure Policy. Sam Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Educational Materials and Restitution Policy:
Sam Nofziger motioned to approve the Educational Materials and Restitution Policy.
Monique Ouwinga seconded.

-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Healthy Youth Act Curriculum:
Sam Nofziger motioned to approve the Healthy Youth Act Curriculum. Monique
Ouwinga seconded.
-Unanimous.




Monarch River Academy

2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257

MONARCH RIVER Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax (559) 335-4089
ACADEMY

Discussion and Potential Action on the Master Agreement:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the Master Agreement. Sam Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Board Meeting Calendar:
Craig Wheaton motioned to approve the Board Calendar while moving the March
meeting to March 2, 2020 and the May meeting to May 7, 2020. Sam Nofziger seconded.
-Unanimous.

Board of Directors Requests:
No requests.

Announcement of Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting:
The next meeting is scheduled for February 13, 2020.

Adjournment:
Sam Nofziger motioned to adjourn the meeting at 6:15 pm. Monique Ouwinga seconded.
-Unanimous.

Prepared by:
Bryanna Brossman

Noted by:

Board Secretary




Monarch River Academy

2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257

MONARCH RIVER Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax (559) 335-4089
ACADEMY

Special Board Meeting - Monarch River Academy
February 3, 2020 — 5:30 pm
337 N Plaza Drive, Visalia CA, 93291

Attendance: Ashely Weins, Sarah Sanchez, Sam Nofziger, Monique Owinga - Teleconference
Absent: Craig Wheaton
Also Present: Dr. Laurie Goodman and Mariah Jordan

Call to Order:
Sam Nofziger called the meeting to order at 5:32 pm.

Flag Salute:
The Flag Salute was conducted.

Approval of the Agenda:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the agenda. Ashely Weins seconded.
-Unanimous.

Public Comments:
None.

Discussion and Potential Action on the School Accountability Report Card (SARC):
Sarah Sanchez motioned to approve the School Accountability Report Card (SARC).
Monique Owinga seconded.

-Unanimous.

Adjournment:
Sarah Sanchez motioned to adjourn the meeting at 5:42 pm. Ashely Weins seconded.
-Unanimous.




MONARCH RIVER
ACADEMY

Prepared by:
Bryanna Brossman

Noted by:

Board Secretary

Monarch River Academy
2293 East Crabtree Avenue, Porterville, CA 93257
Ph (559) 754-1442 | Fax (559) 335-4089




MONARCH RIVER
ACADEMY

Homeless Education Policy

Monarch River Academy is committed to ensuring that homeless students are provided equal
access to the same free, appropriate public education provided to other children and youth.
Homeless students will be given access to the education and other services that such students need
to ensure that they have an opportunity to meet the same challenging State student academic
achievement standards to which all students are held. Homeless students will not be stigmatized
or segregated in a separate school or program based on the student’s status as homeless.

The purpose of the Monarch River Academy Governing Board approving this Homeless Education
Policy is to accomplish the following:

Define Homeless Children and Youth

Identify the Homeless Liaison’s Responsibilities

Explain the Requirements for Enrollment of Homeless Children and Youth
Identify Enrollment Disputes and the Dispute Resolution Process

Outline Transportation Options

Define Comparable Education Services for Homeless Children and Youth
Describe Coursework and Graduation Requirements

Nk =

1. Definitions:
o Homeless children and youths means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and
adequate nighttime residence and includes children and youths:

o Who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic
hardship or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks (not including
mobile home parks), or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate
accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned
in hospitals;

o Who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not
designated for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human
beings;

o Who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard
housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings;

o Who are migratory children who qualify as homeless for purposes of this part
because the children are living in circumstances described above.



Unaccompanied youth includes a youth not in the physical custody of a parent or
guardian.

o The Charter School is the school of origin when the student attended the Charter School
when permanently housed or was last admitted enreled when the student became
homeless. The Charter School will not be considered the school of origin when it is
contrary to the wishes of a student’s parent(s) or guardian(s), or is not in the best interest
of the student.

In determining the best interest of the child or youth, the School shall:

o Presume that keeping the child or youth in the school of origin is in the best interest

of the child or youth, less it is contrary to the request of the child’s or youth’s parent
or guardian, or unaccompanied youth;

Consider student-centered factors related to the child’s or youth’s best interest,
including factors related to the impact of mobility on achievement, education,
health, and safety of homeless children and youth, giving priority to the request of
the child’s or youth’s parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth;

If, after conducting the best interest determination based on consideration of the
presumption identified above and the student-centered factors identified above, the
School determines that it is not in the child’s or youth’s best interest to attend the
School, the School shall provide the child’s or youth’s parent or guardian or the
unaccompanied youth with a written explanation of the reasons for its
determination, in a manner and form understandable to such parent, guardian, or
unaccompanied youth, including information regarding the right to appeal; and

In the case of an unaccompanied youth, ensure that the School liaison assists in
placement or eareHment admission decisions, gives priority to the views of such
unaccompanied youth and provides notice to such youth of the right to appeal.

A child or youth or unaccompanied youth shall be considered homeless for as long as he/she is in
a living situation described above.

2. Homeless Liaison Responsibilities: The Charter School’s homeless liaison is required to do
all of the following:

Ensure that homeless children and youths are identified by school personnel through
outreach and coordination activities with other entities and agencies;

Ensure that homeless children and youth enrelt are admitted in, and have a full and
equal opportunity to succeed in the School;

Ensure that homeless children and youths have access to and receive educational
services for which such families, children, and youth are eligible, including referrals to
health care services, dental services, mental health and substance abuse services,
housing services and other appropriate services;



e Ensure that the parents or guardians of homeless children and youths are informed of
the educational and related opportunities available to their children and are provided
with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children;

¢ Ensure that earelment admission disputes are mediated in accordance with the dispute
resolution process outlined below;

e Ensure that public notice of the educational rights of homeless children and youths is
disseminated in locations frequented by parents or guardians, including schools,
shelters, public libraries and soup kitchens, in a manner and form understandable to the
parents and guardians of homeless children and youths, and unaccompanied youths;

e Ensure that school personnel providing services participate in professional
development and other technical support as determined appropriate by the State
Coordinator;

e Ensure that unaccompanied youths 1) are eareHed admitted to i school; 2) have
opportunities to meet the same challenging State academic standards as the State
establishes for other children and youth, including implementation of procedures to
identify and remove barriers that prevent youths from receiving appropriate credit for
full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed while attending a prior school; and
3) are informed of their status as independent students and that the youths may obtain
assistance from the liaison to receive verification of such status for purposes of the Free
Application for Federal Student Aid.

3. Enrellment Admission: All homeless students are required to follow the school’s process for
eareting admitting students, including filling out and submitting the school’s enrollment
packet on time. As with all students, enrellment admission depends upon availability. In the
event of an oversubscription in a grade, homeless students will participate in the lottery as with
any other student. As used in this policy, admission means attending classes and participating
fully in school activities.

If the homeless student seeking admission te—enrel is unable to produce records normally
required for admission enreHent, such as previous academic records, medical records, proof
of residency or other documentation, this will not serve as a basis for non-earelmentadmission.
Provided that the enrelment admission process has been followed in all other respects, a
homeless student will be enrelted admitted in the School despite the missing paperwork. Upon
enrelment admission, the School will contact the school last attended by the students to obtain
relevant academic and other records.

If the student needs to obtain immunizations, or immunization or medical records, the School
will immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student, or the unaccompanied youth, to
the Homeless Liaison, who shall assist in obtaining necessary immunizations, or immunization
or medical records.

A homeless student shall be allowed to continue his or her education in the school of origin
through the duration of homelessness. If the homeless student’s status changes before the end
of the academic year so that the student is no longer homeless, either of the following apply:
1) If the homeless student is in high_school, the School (if it the school of origin) shall allow
the formerly homeless student to continue that student’s education in the School through




oraduation; 2) If the homeless student is in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to &, inclusive the
School (if it is the school of origin) shall allow the formerly homeless student to continue that
student’s education in the School through the duration of the academic school year.

. Enrellment Admission Disputes and the Dispute Resolution Process: If a dispute arises

over enrolment admission in the Charter School of a homeless student, the student will be
immediately enrolled to the Charter School in Wthh enrotment admlsswn is sought pendmg
resolution of the dispute. ANs o¢cla 3 : atneg

activitics.

The Charter School will refer the student and/or his/her parents or guardians to the Homeless
Liaison, who will carry out the dispute resolution in accordance with the process set forth
below, as expeditiously as possible after receiving notice of the dispute. In the case of an
unaccompanied youth, the Homeless Liaison will ensure that the youth is immediately enreHed
admitted in school pending resolution of the dispute.

Parents, guardians and unaccompanied youth may provide written or oral documentation to
support their positions about earelment admission and may seek assistance of social services,
advocates, and/or service providers in the dispute process.

The Charter School will provide the parent or guardian of the student with a written explanation
of the Charter School’s decision regarding-eareHment admission, including the rights of the
parent, guardian or unaccompanied youth’s appeal the decision. The written explanation will
be complete, as brief as possible, simply stated and provided in a language that the parent,
guardian or unaccompanied youth can understand.

If the dispute remains unresolved at the Charter School level or is appealed, then the Charter
School Homeless Liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the
homeless liaison at the county office of education (COE). The COE’s homeless liaison will
review these materials and determine the school selection or enrelment admission decision
within five (5) working days of receipt of the materials. The COE homeless liaison will notify
the Charter School and parent/guardian/unaccompanied youth of the decision.

If the dispute remains unresolved at the COE level or is appealed to the State, then the COE
homeless liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the State
Homeless Coordinator. Upon review, the CDE will notify the parent/guardian/unaccompanied
youth of the decision relating enretment admission in the Charter School within ten working
days of receipt of the materials.

Transportation: The Charter School will provide or arrange for transportation of a homeless
student, at the request of the parent, guardian or Homeless Liaison, to the Charter School when
the Charter School is the school of origin. If the student begins living in an area served by
another local educational agency while continuing his/her education at the Charter School, the
Charter School will contact that local educational agency to agree upon a method to apportion
the responsibility and costs for providing the student with transportation to and from the
Charter School.



6. Comparable Education Services: Each homeless student will be provided access to services
comparable to services offered to other students in the Charter School, including but not limited
to the following:

e Educational services for which the homeless student meets federal, state and local
program eligibility criteria
e Programs in career and technical education

7. Coursework and Graduation Requirements:  The School shall accept coursework
satisfactorily completed by a homeless student while attending another public school, a
juvenile courts school, a charter school, a school in a country other than the United States, or
a nonpublic, nonsectarian school even if the pupil did not complete the entire course and shall
issue that homeless student full or partial credit for the coursework completed.

The credits accepted shall be applied to the same or equivalent course, if applicable, as the
coursework completed in the prior school.

The School shall not require a homeless student to retake a course if the student has
satisfactorily completed the entire course in a prior school. If the student did not complete the
entire course, the School shall not require the pupil to retake the portion of the course the
student completed unless the School, in consultation with the holder of educational rights for
the student, finds that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to
graduate from high school. When partial credit is awarded in a particular course, the homeless
student shall be admitted in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, so the student may
continue and complete the entire course.

A homeless student shall not be prevented from retaking or taking a course to meet the
eligibility requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of
California.

A homeless student who transfers between schools any time after the completion of the pupil’s
second year of high school and is in the student’s third or fourth year of high school, the School
shall exempt from all coursework and other requirements adopted by the School that are in
addition to the statewide coursework requirements specified in Education Code section
51225.3, unless the School makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the
School’s graduation requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of the
student’s fourth year of high school.

If the School determines that the homeless student is reasonably able to complete the School’s
graduation requirements within the student’s fifth year of high school, the School shall do all
of the following: 1) Inform the student of the student’s option to remain in school for a fifth
year to complete the School’s graduation requirements; 2) Inform the student, and the student’s
educational rights holder, about how remaining in the School for a fifth year to complete the
School’s graduation requirements will affect the student’s ability to gain admission to a
postsecondary educational institution; 3) Provide information to the student about transfer
opportunities available through the California Community Colleges; 4) Permit the student to
stay in school for a fifth year to complete the School’s graduation requirements upon
agreement with the student, if the student is 18 years of age or older, or if under 18 years of
age, with the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the student.



To determine whether a homeless student is in the third of fourth year of high school, either
the number of credits the pupil has earned to the date of transfer or the length of the student’s
school admission may be used, whichever will qualify the student for the exemption.

Within 30 calendar days of the date that a homeless student may qualify for the exemption
from local graduation requirements transfers into a school, the School shall notify the student,
the educational rights holder, and the School’s liaison for homeless children and youth of the
availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for an exemption. Ifthe School
fails to provide timely notice, the student shall be eligible for the exemption from local
graduation requirements once notified, even if that notification occurs after the student is no
longer homeless, if the student otherwise qualifies for the exemption.

A homeless student that has been exempted from local graduation requirements in accordance
with Education Code section 51225.1 and completes the statewide coursework requirements
specified in Education Code section 51225.3 before the end of the student’s fourth year of high
school and that student would otherwise be entitled to remain in attendance at the school, the
School shall not require or request that the pupil graduate before the end of the student’s fourth
year of high school.

If a homeless student is exempted from local graduation requirements pursuant to Education
Code section 51225.1, the School shall notify the student and the person holding the right to
make educational decisions for the student how any of the requirements that are waived will
affect the student’s ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution and
shall provide information about transfer opportunities available through the California
Community Colleges.

If a homeless student who is eligible for the exemption from local graduation requirements and
would otherwise be entitled to remain in attendance at the School shall not be required to accept
the exemption or be denied admission in, or the ability to complete, courses for which the
student is otherwise eligible, including courses necessary to attend an institution of high
education, regardless of whether those courses are required for statewide graduation
requirements.

If a homeless student is not exempted from local graduation requirements or has previously
declined the exemption, the School shall exempt the student at any time if an exemption is
required by the student and the student qualifies for the exemption.

If a homeless student is exempted from local graduation requirements, the School shall not
revoke the exemption.

If a homeless student is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall
continue to apply after the pupil is no longer a homeless student while the student is admitted
in the School or if a homeless student who is exempt from local graduation requirements
transfers to the School from another school.

The School shall not require or request a homeless student to transfer schools in order to qualify
the pupil for an exemption.



A complaint for noncompliance with this section may be filed with the School under the
School’s Uniform Complaint Procedures.

*This policy was adapted from the Charter School Development Center- Homeless Youth Policy.



MONARCH RIVER
ACADEMY

Work Sample Policy

Monarch River Academy offers independent study to meet the needs of pupils enrolled in the
charter school; and as such, teachers much collect work samples from students to ensure that all
students meet the State student academic achievement standards. This policy ensures that student
work samples contain the information necessary to ensure the student’s learning success.

The purpose of the Monarch River Academy Governing Board approving this Work Sample Policy
is to accomplish the following:

1. Provide an overview for the Work Sample Policy
2. Explain the requirements of an Acceptable Work Sample
3. Identify Criteria for Non-Compliant Work Samples

1. Overview: As an independent study program, Monarch River Academy is required to collect
work samples from each of its students as a condition of apportionment. Work samples
allow the student’s supervising teacher to determine the time value of the completed student
work. Work samples are turned in to the student’s supervising teacher in accordance with the
student’s Master Agreement.

2. Procedures: Work samples must contain the following information:

1. Student’s First Name and Last Name (nicknames are okay)

2. Date that the work was completed, including the year. The work sample must be the
student’s original work. If anything gets changed on the original work sample, the
student must initial such changes. All initialed changes mean that the student made the
changes, not the parent/guardian/caretaker or teacher.

The supervising teacher must verify the work sample by including the following:
Homeschool teacher’s name

Student’s full name

Course name (must match the Master Agreement)

Date the teacher reviewed the material

Date the student completed the sample

HST grade

A

3. Acceptable Work Sample Criteria:
* Original or scanned PDF version
» Demonstrates neat and organized work
* Demonstrates a good reflection of your child's learning and abilities
* Includes student's name and date in the top right-hand corner



The sample needs to be completed and dated within the collection Learning Period

Must be non-sectarian (non-religious)

Photographs must include a summary from the student’s perspective

Samples may be typed or handwritten by the student. Younger students may dictate to the
parent to write or type for them

. Non-Compliant Work Samples Include:

Scanned documents that are difficult to read or are very light

A scanned or printed document of a certificate of completion or report from an online
learning platform

Samples completed and dated not within the Learning Period

A photograph which does not include the student’s summary of the project/concept
Incomplete worksheets or work



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Monarch Charter School
CDS Code:
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Year: 2019-20

LEA contact information: Amy Davis, Senior Director

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2019-20 LCAP Year

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

All federal funds, $110,952
,1%

\ Total LCFF funds,

$9,505,986, 92 %

sapplemental &
concantration grants ,
$4%2,666 , 4%

All other state funa
$722,257 ,7%

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Monarch Charter School expects to receive in the
coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Monarch Charter School is $10,339,196, of which $9,505,986 is Local
Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $722,257 is other state funds, $0 is local funds, and $110,952 is federal
funds. Of the $9,505,986 in LCFF Funds, $452,666 is generated based on the enroliment of high needs
students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students).

Page 1 of 57



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

Budgeted Expenditures

$ 12,000,000
$ 10,000,000

$ 8,000,000 Total Budgeted General

Fund Expenditures
$ 6,000,000 $9,913,772
$ 4,000,000 Total Budgeted
T Expenditures in LCAP
$ 2,000,000 $5,264,088
$0

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Monarch Charter School plans to spend for 2019-20. It
shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Monarch Charter School plans to spend $9,913,772 for the 2019-20 school year. Of that amount,
$5,264,088 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $4,649,684 is not included in the LCAP. The
budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following:

Classified salaries/benefits, administrator salaries/benefits, instructional materials, operations,
professional services, and facility-related costs. The cost of our instructional materials is significant
because we offer a variety of educational platforms including online courses, blended models of online
course work, educational enrichment opportunities, and individual tutoring services.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20

In 2019-20, Monarch Charter School is projecting it will receive $452,666 based on the enroliment of
foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Monarch Charter School must demonstrate the
planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high needs students compared to the
services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives for high needs students. In
the LCAP, Monarch Charter School plans to spend $452,666 on actions to meet this requirement.

Page 2 of 57




LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20)
2019-20

Local Control
ACCO u nta bl I Ity P I a n Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

and Annual Update

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

(LCAP) Template

LEA Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Monarch Charter School Amy Davis amy@inspireschools.org
Senior Director 951-456-1981

2017-20 Plan Summary
The Story

Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

Monarch Charter School is a tuition-free public charter school offering personalized student learning
in grades TK through 12 . We offer multiple educational programs and encourages parents to
customize their child's learning experience to help address individual learning needs. Under the
direction of caring, appropriately credentialed teachers, students complete an independent study
and small group instruction online programs. Students can choose to complete their educational
experience completely online, participate in a blended model of online coursework with some direct
instruction, complete some offline textbook work, participate in homeschool curriculum, enroll in
project-based courses, and enjoy enrichment opportunities.

LCAP Highlights

Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’'s LCAP.

Although this is our first year of operation, we will focus on our four-year graduation rate and
performance on state assessments through the following actions:

Implement four-year graduation rate needs assessment and root cause analysis including
related professional development (Goal 4, Action1)

Implement Project Recovery for students, particularly for unduplicated students including
those who are English Learners, Foster Youth, or have a low socio-economic background.
(Goal 4, Action 4); and

Targeted Professional Development for teachers to support students who are performing
below grade level standard on the Smarter Balance Assessment or district diagnostic
assessments (Goal 2, Action 4)

Page 4 of 57



Review of Performance

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for
these students.

Greatest Progress

Because Monarch is in its initial year, we do not have California School Dashboard results to
measure our performance. We look forward to analyzing our Dashboard results next year.

Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a
“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for
improvement?

Greatest Needs

We are expecting to receive our initial California School Dashboard results in December 2020 and
will assess our greatest needs at that point.

Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA
planning to take to address these performance gaps?

Performance Gaps

This is our first year and thus do not expect to receive any California Dashboard results until 2020.
When released, we will review Dashboard results to discern whether we are experiencing any
performance gaps among student groups.

Comprehensive Support and Improvement

An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSl) under the Every
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts.

Schools Identified
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

N/A

Page 5 of 57



Support for Identified Schools

Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan.

N/A

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness

Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSlI plan to
support student and school improvement.

N/A

Page 6 of 57



Goals, Actions, & Services

Strategic Planning Details and Accountability
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal)
New Goal

Goal 1

Provide high-quality teaching and learning that promotes opportunity for applying knowledge within an independent study/online
curriculum structure.

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

State Priorities: Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)
Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)

Local Priorities: Basic Conditions

Identified Need:

As an independent study school, students need a variety of ways to engage with the school community to positively impact their
educational experience. Focused professional development for parents/learning coaches continues to be a need because they provide
daily instructional support to students.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Percent of teachers Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
appropriately on 19- 20 results
credentialed and
assigned.

Percent of facilities Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
considered safe as on 19- 20 results

demonstrated in the
Facilities Inventory (FIT)
Report.

Page 10 of 57



Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Percent of student with Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
access to CA state on 19- 20 results

standards-aligned

instructional materials

(text and e-text) for all

core subject areas.

Percent of students who Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
have access to a on 19- 20 results

computer.

Percent of students who Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD

have a broad course of on 19- 20 results
study through vendor

lobby electives and

enrichment

opportunities.

Planned Actions / Services

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action 1
All All Schools
Specific Grade Spans: K-12
OR
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]

Actions/Services

New Action

Ensure teachers are appropriate
credentialed and assigned.

Budgeted Expenditures

Page 11 of 57



Amount $2,746,500

Source LCFF Base

Budget 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel

Reference Salaries

Certificated Teachers

Action 2

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served: Location(s):

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)

All All Schools
OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served: Scope of Services: Location(s):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s)) Specific Grade Spans)

[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged

for 2017-18 for 2018-19 for 2019-20
New Action
2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Staff will meet in monthly PLNs to share
and discuss best practices and resources
for supporting learning in a virtual
environment.

Budgeted Expenditures

Page 12 of 57



Year 2017-18
Amount

Source

Budget
Reference

Action 3
All

[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures
Amount
Source

Budget
Reference

Action 4

2018-19

All Schools
OR

[Add Scope of Services selection here]

2019-20
$22,681

LCFF Base

5800: Professional/Consulting
Services And Operating
Expenditures

Professional Development

[Add Location(s) selection here]

New Action

Provide access to broad course of study
such as VAPA courses and enrichment
opportunities

$1,432,956
LCFF Base

5000-5999: Services And Other
Operating Expenditures

Reference new account 5106 Other
Educational Consultants

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served:

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups)

Location(s):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)

Page 13 of 57



OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served: Scope of Services: Location(s):
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s)) Specific Grade Spans)

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18 for 2018-19 for 2019-20

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Page 14 of 57



Goals, Actions, & Services

Strategic Planning Details and Accountability
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal)
New Goal

Goal 2

Provide appropriate tiered supports that promote and sustain positive social/emotional development as well increased academic
achievement for all students.

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

State Priorities: Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)
Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)

Local Priorities: Implementation of Academic Standards

Identified Need:
In our initial year, this goal is focused on our performance on the California School Dashboard.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

CAASPP participation Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
rate will be at least 95% on 19- 20 results

The percentage of Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
Inspire students meeting on 19- 20 results

or exceeding standards

on CAASPP ELA

assessments, including

all subgroups

The percentage of Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
Inspire students meeting on 19- 20 results

Page 15 of 57



Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

or exceeding standards
on CAASPP
Mathematics
assessments, including
all subgroups

10% of English Learners Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
will increase one level of on 19- 20 results

proficiency on the

English Learner

Progress Indicator

annually

At least 10% of EL Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
students will reclassify on 19- 20 results

100% of teachers will Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD

engage in >15 hours of  on 19- 20 results
curriculum training and

CCSS PD during the

school year

95% of all students will Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
participate in quarterly on 19- 20 results

interim benchmark

assessments to show

mastery of standards

taught

Planned Actions / Services

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action 1
All All Schools
OR
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]

Page 16 of 57



Actions/Services

New Action

Administer interim benchmark
assessments to identify the standards not

yet mastered and prepare for state testing
in ELA and Math.

Budgeted Expenditures

Amount $31,444
Source LCFF Base
Budget 4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Reference
Action 2

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served: Location(s):

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)
All

All Schools
Students with Disabilities

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served: Scope of Services:
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s))

Location(s):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or

Specific Grade Spans)
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2018-19

for 2019-20

New Action

Page 17 of 57



2017-18 Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures

Year 2017-18

Amount
Source

Budget
Reference

Action 3

2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Continue Multi-Tiered Systems of
Supports to identify student attendance
and academic/social needs, or exceptional
needs and to individualize support
including online virtual instruction license
assignments, and enrichment tutoring
services

2018-19 2019-20

$291,250
LCFF Base

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
See software costs listed in goal 1
action 4

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served:

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups)
[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)

[Add Location(s) selection here]
OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served:
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth,
and/or Low Income)

English Learners

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Group(s))

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans)

Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) All Schools

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2018-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2019-20

Page 18 of 57



New Action

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Provide professional development to help
guide and support administrators,
counselors, and teachers in addressing
the academic needs of ELs and their
families including administering ELPAC,
identifying ELs, administering language
surveys, and coordinating ELD instruction.

Budgeted Expenditures

Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Amount $100,000
Source LCFF SC
Budget 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Reference Salaries
Action 4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Location(s):
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)
All All Schools
OR
For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Scope of Services: Location(s):
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s)) Specific Grade Spans)
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]

Actions/Services

Page 19 of 57



Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged

for 2017-18 for 2018-19 for 2019-20
New Action
2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Targeted Professional Development for
teachers to support students who are
performing below grade level standard on
the Smarter Balance Assessment or
STAR360 in ELA and Mathematics

Budgeted Expenditures

Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Amount 0

Source LCFF Base

Budget 5000-5999: Services And Other
Reference Operating Expenditures

Included in 5104 PD costs listed in
Goal 1, Action 2

Action 5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Location(s):
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)
OR
For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Scope of Services: Location(s):
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s)) Specific Grade Spans)

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18 for 2018-19 for 2019-20

Page 20 of 57



2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Page 21 of 57



Goals, Actions, & Services

Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal)
New Goal

Goal 3

Create systems and structures that provide multiple personalized learning paths to increase cohort graduation rate and College and
Career Readiness of students to close the achievement gap

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

State Priorities:

Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)

Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)

Local Priorities:

Identified Need:

In our initial year, the purpose of this goal to increase our students' college and career readiness including the implementation of
vertically aligned CTE pathways, college-level courses, and completion of A-G course sequences.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline

The number of students  Baseline will be based
taking college level on 19- 20 results
courses (concurrent

enrollment or within

community colleges)

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Counselors and HST
teachers will meet with
each student and family
to a create personalized
learning plan

2017-18
N/A

N/A

Page 22 of 57

2018-19 2019-20
N/A TBD

N/A TBD



Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Increase the number of  Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
Career Technical on 19- 20 results

Pathways

Increase the percentage Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
of students scoring at on 19- 20 results

Prepared and
Approaching Prepared
on the College Career

Indicator

Percent of students that Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
pass AP examination on 19- 20 results

with a score of 3 or

higher

Planned Actions / Services

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action 1
All All Schools
OR
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]

Actions/Services

New Action

Increase number of vertically aligned CTE
Pathways

Budgeted Expenditures

Page 23 of 57



Amount
Source

Budget
Reference

Action 2
All

[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures
Amount
Source

Budget
Reference

Action 3

All Schools
OR

[Add Scope of Services selection here]

Page 24 of 57

0
LCFF Base

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Salaries
No additional expenses

[Add Location(s) selection here]

New Action
Unchanged Action

Continue to support and provide
professional development to
administrators and teachers to ensure
students demonstrate preparedness as
measured by the College Career Indicator.

0
LCFF Base

5800: Professional/Consulting
Services And Operating
Expenditures
Professional/consulting and
operating expenditures/costs
included in Goal 1, Action 2



All All Schools

OR
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]
Actions/Services
New Action
The school will establish an IGPS
review/adjustment procedure that includes
reviewing individual student grades after
every grading period. Counselors and
HSTs will identify, create a plan and
monitor for students at risk.
Budgeted Expenditures
Amount 0
Source LCFF Base
Budget 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Reference Salaries
Costs included in Goal 1, Action 1
Action 4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Location(s):
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)
OR
For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Scope of Services: Location(s):
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s)) Specific Grade Spans)

Actions/Services

Page 25 of 57



Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18 for 2018-19 for 2019-20

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Page 26 of 57



Goals, Actions, & Services

Strategic Planning Details and Accountability
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal)
New Goal

Goal 4

Increase student, parent, staff, and community engagement through collaboration, transparency, and communication and provide
broad course of study.

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

State Priorities: Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)
Local Priorities: * Parent Involvement and Engagement « School Climate Survey

Identified Need:
The focus of this Goal in our initial year is on our four-year cohort high school graduation rate and engagement of stakeholders.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Increase number of Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
students participating in  on 19- 20 results
Enrichment

opportunities as
measured by student
enrollment

Increased student Baseline will be based N/A N/A TBD
participation academic on 19- 20 results

and leadership

opportunities such as

Yearbook Committee,

Page 27 of 57



Metrics/Indicators

Student Council, Meet
the Masters based on
student sign in

Increase use of school
website and provide
parents with updated
FAQs, policies, and
program descriptions as
monitored by Google
Analytics

Maintain chronic
absenteeism rate at 0%.

Maintain the rate of pupil
suspension and
expulsions rates.

Increase high school
cohort graduation rate

Decrease the high
school cohort dropout
rate

Decrease the middle
school dropout rate

Increase parent
participation rate for the
school climate survey by
10%

Maintain current
attendance rates of 95%
or higher by ensuring
the timely completion of
assignments

Baseline

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

Baseline will be based
on 19- 20 results

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2017-18

Page 28 of 57

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2018-19

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

2019-20



Planned Actions / Services

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action 1
All All Schools
OR
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]
Actions/Services
New Action
Implement four-year graduation rate needs
assessment and root cause analysis
including related professional development
Budgeted Expenditures
Amount 0
Source LCFF Base
Budget 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Reference Salaries
No additional costs
Action 2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served: Location(s):
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]
OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Page 29 of 57



Students to be Served:
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth,
and/or Low Income)

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18

2017-18 Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures

Year 2017-18

Amount
Source

Budget
Reference

Action 3

[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Group(s))

Schoolwide

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2018-19

2018-19 Actions/Services

2018-19

All Schools

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans)

All Schools
Specific Grade Spans: K-12

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2019-20

New Action

2019-20 Actions/Services

Fund parent liaison position to address
specific needs of unduplicated students
including augmented communication with
their families

2019-20
$100,000

LCFF SC

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Salaries

[Add Location(s) selection here]

OR

Page 30 of 57



Foster Youth
Low Income

[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures
Amount

Source

Budget
Reference

Action 4

Schoolwide
[Add Scope of Services selection here]

All Schools
Specific Grade Spans: K-12
[Add Location(s) selection here]

New Action

Fund Foster/homeless youth liaison
position to address the specific needs of
foster/homeless youth including proactive
monitoring of socio-emotional needs

$150,000
LCFF SC

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Salaries

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served:

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups)
[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Location(s):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans)

[Add Location(s) selection here]

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

Students to be Served:

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth,
and/or Low Income)

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

Scope of Services:

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Group(s))

Schoolwide

Page 31 of 57

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans)

All Schools
Specific Grade Spans: K-12



Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2017-18

2017-18 Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures

Year 2017-18
Amount

Source

Budget
Reference

Action 5
All

[Add Students to be Served selection here]

Actions/Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged

for 2018-19

2018-19 Actions/Services

2018-19

All Schools
OR

[Add Scope of Services selection here]

Page 32 of 57

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged
for 2019-20

New Action

2019-20 Actions/Services

Implement Project Recovery for students,
particularly those with an EL, FY, or SED
background, who did not re-enroll with
Inspire the following school year as well as
those that leave during a school year to
decrease the dropout rates in middle and
high school.

2019-20
$102,666

LCFF SC

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Salaries

[Add Location(s) selection here]

New Action

Increase opportunities for students to
participate in leadership and academic



events to development confidence and
leadership skKills.

Budgeted Expenditures

Amount $286,591

Source LCFF Base

Budget 5800: Professional/Consulting
Reference Services And Operating

Expenditures

Action 6
All All Schools
OR
[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Scope of Services selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here]
Actions/Services
New Action
Maintain updated FAQs, policies, and
program descriptions on school website
Budgeted Expenditures
Amount 0
Source LCFF Base
Budget 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel
Reference Salaries

No additional costs

Page 33 of 57



Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year: 2019-20

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

$$452,666 5%

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions).

We will use supplemental and concentration funds to augment supports and services to principally benefit targeted unduplicated
groups including English learners (EL), foster youth (FY), and socioeconomically disadvantaged (SED) students in a school-wide
manner.

We have made a concerted effort to analyze the unique academic, social, and emotional needs of students with an EL, FY, or SED
background. The supplemental and concentration funds identified in our LCAP effectively support the needs of our unduplicated
students by supporting/augmenting the following actions/services:

o Parent liaison position-this position addresses specific needs of unduplicated students including augmented communication
with their families (Goal 4,

Action 2)

« Foster/homeless youth liaison position- this position addresses the specific needs of foster/homeless youth including proactive
monitoring of socio-

emotional needs (Goal 4, Action 3)

o Provide professional development to help guide and support administrators, counselors, and teachers in addressing the
academic needs of ELs and their families including administering ELPAC, identifying ELs, administering language surveys,
and coordinating ELD instruction (Goal 2, Action 3)

Page 34 of 57



o Implement Project Recovery for students, particularly those with an EL, FY, or SED background, who did not re-enroll with
Inspire the following school year to decrease the dropout rates in middle and high school (Goal 4, Action 4)

LCAP Year: 2018-19

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

$ %

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions).

LCAP Year: 2017-18

Page 35 of 57



Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

$ %

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions).

Page 36 of 57



Addendum

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district,
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and
any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education
programs.

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a

single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066,
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material
revision to the school’s charter petition.

Page 37 of 57



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
Plan Summary

Annual Update

Stakeholder Engagement

Goals, Actions, and Services

Planned Actions/Services

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at:
916-319-0809 or by email at: Icff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary

The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.

When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in
these sections. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.

In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits. LEAs may include
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and
actual expenditures.

An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table.

The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.

Comprehensive Support and Improvement

An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSl)
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts:

e Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

e Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the
implementation of the CSI plan.

¢ Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school
improvement.
Page 38 of 57



Annual Update

The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 — 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example,
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the
2017/18 — 2019/20 LCAP.

Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the
goal.

Actions/Services

Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served,
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.

Analysis

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal.
Respond to the prompts as instructed.

e Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the
implementation process.

e Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal
as measured by the LEA.

e Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not
required.

e Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be
found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement

Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires

Page 39 of 57



charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents,
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet
specific goals.

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3,
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual
Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee,
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the
indicated LCAP year.

Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals,
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services

LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to
implement the specific actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is
reviewed and updated annually, as required.

Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.

New, Modified, Unchanged

As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are
modified or unchanged from the previous year's LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Page 40 of 57



Goal

State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #’ box for ease of reference. A
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?

Related State and/or Local Priorities

List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal. The identified needs may be based on
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan.
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected
outcomes for subsequent years.

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of
LEA. For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services
Requirement

Students to be Served

The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as
appropriate.

Page 41 of 57



Location(s)

Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and,
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services
Requirement:

Students to be Served

For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below),
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.

Scope of Service

For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options:

e If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide."

e If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.

e If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide”
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use
“‘LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a
consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)

Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Page 42 of 57



Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and,
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services

For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the
described goal. Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may
be grouped together. LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of
reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged:

e Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.

e Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

e Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year
description.

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures
may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template. If year 2 and/or year 3 is not
applicable, charter schools must specify as such.

Budgeted Expenditures

For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.

Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first
appears in the LCAP.

Page 43 of 57



If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for
Unduplicated Students

This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3,
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds

|dentify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (56 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to
services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to grow services in
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. This description must address
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated
pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

e For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

e For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or
educational theory.

Page 44 of 57



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a
schoolwide basis:

For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the
state and any local priorities.

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40%
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

Page 45 of 57



State Priorities

Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A.

B.
C.

Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the
pupils they are teaching;

Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:

A.

B.

The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all
students, which are:

English Language Arts — Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts
Mathematics — CCSS for Mathematics

English Language Development (ELD)

Career Technical Education

Health Education Content Standards

History-Social Science

Model School Library Standards

Physical Education Model Content Standards

Next Generation Science Standards

Visual and Performing Arts

World Language; and

How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

xXT T oQ ™m0 2000

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:

A.

B.
C.

The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and
each individual school site;

How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and
How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional
needs.

Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A
B.
C.

G.

Statewide assessments;

The Academic Performance Index;

The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California
(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework;

The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT);

The English learner reclassification rate;

The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or
higher; and

The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the
Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.

Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A.

School attendance rates;

B. Chronic absenteeism rates;
C.
D
E

Middle school dropout rates;

. High school dropout rates; and

High school graduation rates;

Page 46 of 57



Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and
school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:
A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as
applicable;
B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.
Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils.
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:
A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of
services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be
included in court reports;
C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and
D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the
health and education passport.
Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

Page 47 of 57



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:
(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days
excluding students who were:
(A) enrolled less than 31 days
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day

(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to
be exempt if they:

(i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School
(i) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting
(iif) are attending a community college full-time.

(2) The number of students who meet the enroliment requirements.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where
“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus

pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years
1,2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.
(3) Divide (1) by (2).
(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate:
(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the
end of year 4 in the cohort.
(B) The total number of students in the cohort.
(C) Divide (1) by (2).
(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate:

(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any
of the following:

(i) a regular high school diploma
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate
(iii) an adult education diploma
(iv) a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative
Assessment if under the age of 20.
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort.
(C) Divide (1) by (2).
(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was
suspended during the academic year (July 1 — June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during
the academic year (July 1 — June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).
(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was
expelled during the academic year (July 1 — June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during
the academic year (July 1 — June 30).

Page 48 of 57



(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574,
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060,
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C.
Sections 6312 and 6314.

Page 49 of 57



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1)

2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of
those services result in the desired outcomes?

How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired
outcomes?

How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review
progress toward goals in the annual update?

What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)?
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?
What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated
pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting
implementation of the LCAP?

How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for
engagement in the development of the LCAP?

What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting
process? How was the information made available?

What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement
processes?

What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.017

What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR
Section 15495(a)?

Page 50 of 57



7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported? How has the involvement
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils,
related to the state priorities?

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access
(Priority 7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled
Pupils (Priority 9 — COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 —
COE Only)?

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil
‘Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School
Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?

5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the
development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth
school level data analysis, etc.)?

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals
annually and over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to
develop goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?

10)What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 520527

11)What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant
to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12)How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?

13)What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?
Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019

Page 51 of 57



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

_ 2018-19 2018-19 tzr?gl;;ﬁ
Funding Source Annual Update | Annual Update 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2019-20
Budgeted Actual Total
All Funding Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,264,088.00 5,264,088.00
LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,811,422.00 4,811,422.00
LCFF SC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 452,666.00 452,666.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Page 52 of 57




Operating Expenditures

Total Expenditures by Object Type
2018-19 2018-19 o175
Object Type Annual Update | Annual Update 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 g
2019-20
Budgeted Actual
Total
All Expenditure Types 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,264,088.00 5,264,088.00
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,199,166.00 3,199,166.00
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 322,694.00 322,694.00
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,432,956.00 1,432,956.00
Expenditures
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309,272.00 309,272.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Page 53 of 57




Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

2018-19 2018-19 2017-18
. . Annual Annual through
Object Type Funding Source Update Update 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2019-20
Budgeted Actual Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,264,088.00 | 5,264,088.00
1000-1999: Certificated LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,746,500.00 | 2,746,500.00
Personnel Salaries
1000-1999: Certificated LCFF SC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 452,666.00 452,666.00
Personnel Salaries
4000-4999: Books And LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 322,694.00 322,694.00
Supplies
5000-5999: Services And LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,432,956.00 | 1,432,956.00
Other Operating Expenditures
5800: Professional/Consulting | LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309,272.00 309,272.00
Services And Operating
Expenditures

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Page 54 of 57




Goal 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,202,137.00 4,202,137.00
Goal 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 422,694.00 422,694.00
Goal 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Goal 4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 639,257.00 639,257.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Page 55 of 57




All Funding Sources

Page 56 of 57



All Funding Sources

Page 57 of 57



MONARCH RIVER
ACADEMY

Monarch River Academy

Comprehensive School Safety Plan
SB 187 & SB 334 Compliance Document

2020-2021

pg. 1



1740 Huntington Dr. #205
Duarte, CA 91010

This document is to be maintained for public inspection during business hours

pg. 2



TABLE OF CONTENTS

MONARCH RIVER ACADEMY
SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION — SCHOOL SAFETY

PART 1: DISTRICT COMMITMENT TO SCHOOL SAFETY

PART 2: LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

PART 3: MAINTAINING A SAFE AND ORDERLY ENVIRONMENT
PART 4: CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS

SECTION B: CHILD ABUSE REPORTING PROCEDURES
PART 1: CHILD ABUSE REPORTING PROCEDURES
SECTION C: EMERGENCY/DISASTER PLANS

PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION - DISASTER

PART 2: BIOLOGICAL/CHEMICAL WEAPONS ASSAULT
PART 3: BOMB THREAT PROCEDURES

PART 4: CHEMICAL OR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL INCIDENT
PART 5: EARTHQUAKE PROCEDURES

PART 6: EXPLOSION, AIRCRAFT CRASH OR SIMILAR INCIDENT
PART 7: FIRE PROCEDURES

PART 8: FLOOD PROCEDURES

PART 9: LOCKDOWN/CIVIL UNREST PROCEDURES

PART 10: SEVERE WINDSTORM PROCEDURES

PART 11: SUSPICIOUS MAIL PACKAGES

SECTION D: SUSPENSION/EXPULSION POLICY AND PROCEDURES

PART 1: DEFINITIONS/DUE PROCESS/RULES AND PROCEDURES OF SCHOOL DISCIPLINE/PROCESS AND PROCEDURES62

SECTION E: PROCEDURES TO NOTIFY TEACHERS OF DANGEROUS PUPILS
PART 1: NOTIFY TEACHERS OF DANGEROUS PUPILS
SECTION F: DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION
PART 2: SEXUAL HARASSMENT — ALL PERSONNEL
PART 3: SEXUAL HARASSMENT — STUDENTS

SECTION G: SCHOOL DRESS CODE (IF IT EXISTS)
Part 1: Nonclassroom based program we do not have dress code
SECTION H: SAFE INGRESS AND EGRESS

PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION
PART 2: SAFE INGRESS AND EGRESS

SECTION I: BULLYING AND INTIMIDATION
PART 1: ANTI-INTIMIDATION POLICY
SECTION J: MENTAL HEALTH GUIDELINES

PART 1: HEALTH GUIDELINES SUICIDE PREVENTION, INTERVENTION AND POSTVENTION PROTOCOL
PART 2: SUICIDE PREVENTION, INTERVENTION AND POSTVENTION PROTOCOL

SECTION K: CRIME ASSESSMENT

PART 1: CRIME ASSESSMENT

[

~N 9 LWL R W W

o
=

14
49
51
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
6059

62

84
84
87

87
88
92

95
95
96

96
97

98
98
102

102
102

117
117

pg. 3



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 1: District Commitment to School Safety

Monarch River Academy is committed to ensuring that all enrolled students and all employees are safe and
secure. Monarch River Academy believes that a beginning step toward safer schools is the development of a
comprehensive plan for school safety by every school. Monarch River Academy intends that parents, students,
teachers, administrators, counselors, classified personnel, and community agencies develop safe school plans as
a collaborative process. The plan will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis and proposed changes will
be submitted to the Board for approval.

pg. 4



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 2: Legislative Requirements

The California Education Code (sections 35294-35294.9) outlines the requirements of all schools operating any
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a school safety plan relevant to the needs
and resources of that particular school.

This requirement was presented in Senate Bill 187, which was approved by the Governor and chaptered in
1997. This legislation contained a sunset clause that stated that this legislation would remain in effect only until
January 1, 2000. Senate Bill 334 was approved and chaptered in 1999 and perpetuated this legislation under the
requirement of the initial legislation.

Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 187/SB 334 to contain the following elements:

Plans for Charter Schools must “identify appropriate strategies and programs that provide and maintain a high
level of school safety and address the school’s procedures for complying with existing laws related to school

safety, including but not limited to” the following:

Employee Fingerprint/Background Check — Ed Code 44237

Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 & .6

Emergency/Disaster Plans — Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220; ADA

Suspension/Expulsion policies and procedures — Ed Code 48915

Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils — Ed Code 49079

Discrimination and Harassment Policy (include hate crime reporting procedures and policies)*
Schoolwide Dress Code (if it exists - including prohibition of gang-related apparel)

Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents, and school employees to and from school site
(pick-up, drop-off, maps, etc.)

A safe and orderly environment conducive to learning at the school

TOQImo QW

e

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1% every year. In July of every
year, the school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in
the annual school accountability report card.

pg. 5



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 3: Maintaining a Safe and Orderly Environment

It is a priority of the administration and staff at Monarch River Academy that every student who attends our
school will be provided with an environment in which the students not only feel physically safe, but that there is
also a positive school climate in all activities.

Our administration and staff desire to provide an orderly, caring, and nondiscriminatory learning environment in
which all students can feel comfortable and take pride in their school and their achievements.

Our administration encourages staff to teach students the meaning of equality, human dignity, and mutual
respect, and to employ cooperative learning strategies that foster positive interactions among students from
diverse backgrounds.

Students shall have opportunities to voice their concerns about school policies and practices and to share
responsibility for solving problems that affect their school. Staff shall encourage and reward success and
achievement, participation in community projects, and positive student conduct.

Our school network promotes nonviolent resolution techniques in order to encourage attitudes and behaviors
that foster harmonious relations. Staff shall receive training which implements and supports conflict resolution

(California Education Code Sections 32230-32239, 35160, 35160.1, 44806).

Monarch River Academy remains in compliance with existing laws related to school safety. This plan outlines
several elements critical to maintaining a safe school environment.

pg. 6



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 4: Criminal Background Check

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK

Monarch River Academy recognizes the importance of maintaining a safe workplace with employees who are
honest, trustworthy, qualified, reliable, and nonviolent, and do not present a risk of harm to students, coworkers
or others. Monarch River Academy will perform applicant background checks and employee investigations as
required by Education Code section 47605 [b][f], which requires that “each employee of the school furnish the
school with a criminal record summary”.

All employees must have Live Scan fingerprint results on file with Monarch River Academy. Proof of Live Scan
fingerprinting is a requirement of employment and the results must be provided to Monarch River Academy prior
to the first day of work. Live Scan fingerprinting will be required of all job applicants, employees, and volunteers
as required by California and federal law. Background checks may also be required of employees whose job
duties involve care of students, handling of money, valuables or confidential information, or as otherwise deemed
prudent by the school. These background checks are performed through a fingerprinting service coordinated by
the California Department of Justice (DOJ) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). Any and all
information obtained by Monarch River Academy may be taken into consideration in evaluating one’s suitability
for employment, promotion, reassignment, or retention as an Employee.

Monarch River Academy shall also request subsequent arrest notification from the Department of Justice and take
all necessary action based upon such further notification.

Monarch River Academy may occasionally find it necessary to investigate current employees, where behavior or
other relevant circumstances raise questions concerning work performance, reliability, honesty, trustworthiness,
or potential threat to the safety of coworkers, students or others. Employee investigations may, where appropriate,
include credit reports and investigations of criminal records, including appropriate inquiries about any arrest for
which the employee is out on bail. In the event that a background check is conducted, Monarch River Academy
will comply with the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act and applicable state laws, including providing the
employee with any required notices and forms. Employees subject to an investigation are required to cooperate
with Monarch River Academy’s lawful efforts to obtain relevant information, and may be disciplined up to and
including suspension without pay and/or termination for failure to do so.

Employees with adverse background information (such as certain specific criminal conviction) may be
ineligible for employment with Monarch River Academy.

pg. 7



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Child abuse reporting law (Penal Code Section 11166) requires that a Monarch River Academy employee who
has reason to believe that a child has been subjected to abuse, report the incident to the proper authorities.

At Monarch River Academy, protecting children from child abuse is a major priority. Each year the
administration sets aside time to meet with staff to discuss child abuse indicators and to remind teachers of the
procedures to follow when abuse is suspected.

Employees of Monarch River Academy are familiar with Penal Code Section 11166 and understand the
requirement that certificated and classified personnel report suspected child abuse immediately or as soon as
practically possible to the Senior Director or to Children’s Protective Services by telephone. They are aware
that a call must be followed within at least 36 hours by a written report to the child protective agency.

All staff is aware of the location of a Child Abuse Information Folder that is kept on file and updated regularly.
It includes informational literature, guidelines for recognizing abuse and specific directions for reporting it.

The determination as to who should be contacted will depend greatly upon the situation at hand. The local law
enforcement agency will dispatch a unit to the school as soon as possible. Children’s services may take much
longer to respond. School personnel should always take into consideration the severity of the abuse and the
extent to which the student’s safety is at risk.

pg. 8



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

The requirements of school personnel and the identification and reporting of known or suspected child abuse to
a protective agency is mandated by the State of California Penal Code. In fact, failure to do so on the part of
school personnel could lead to penalties which might be imposed on these individuals. Monarch River
Academy board policies are continually updated to reflect appropriate legislation. Excerpts from the California
Penal Code and Monarch River Academy Board Policy are presented below.

From California Penal Code Section 11166

...any child care custodian, health practitioner, or employee of a child protective agency who has knowledge or
observes a child in his or her professional capacity within the scope of his or her employment whom he
or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse shall report the known or
suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency immediately or as soon as practically
possible by telephone and shall prepare and send a written report thereof within 36 hours of receiving
the information concerning the incident.

Monarch River Academy

— Child Abuse Prevention Programs
Recognizing that our responsibility to students includes the protection of their physical and mental well-
being, the Governing Board desires to provide whatever opportunities or resources may be available for
the prevention of child abuse.

The Board agrees with the Legislature that:

1. Child abuse and neglect is a severe and increasing problem in California.

2. School districts and preschools are able to provide an environment for training of children, parents,
and all school district staff.

3. Primary prevention programs in the school districts are an effective and cost-efficient method of
reducing the incidence of child abuse and neglect and for promoting healthy family environments.

pg. 9



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Monarch River Academy
— Child Abuse Prevention Programs (Continued)

The Senior Director shall explore funding and assistance available for the establishment of programs
directed toward preventing the occurrence of child abuse, including physical abuse, sexual assault, and
child neglect, and reducing the general vulnerability of children, including coordination with and
training for parents and school staff.

Parents shall be given notice of, and may refuse to have their children participate in, prevention training
program.

Monarch River Academy
— Child Abuse and Neglect

Duty to Report

Certificated employees and classified employees trained in child abuse identification and reporting shall
report known or suspected child abuse to a child protective agency by telephone immediately or as soon
as practically possible and in writing within thirty-six hours. The reporting duties are individual and
cannot be delegated to another individual.

Definitions
1. “Child Abuse,” as defined by law, pursuant to Penal Code 273 and 11165, and for purposes of
this regulation includes the following:
a. Physical abuse resulting in a non-accidental physical injury.
b. Physical neglect, including both severe and general neglect, resulting in negligent
treatment or maltreatment of a child.
C. Sexual abuse including both sexual assault and sexual exploitation.
d. Emotional abuse and emotional deprivation including willful cruelty or unjustifiable
punishment.
e. Severe corporal punishment.

pg. 10



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Monarch River Academy
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

2.

29 ¢

“Mandated Reporters” are those people defined by law as “child care custodian,” “medical
practitioners” and non-medical practitioners” and include virtually all school employees. The
following school personnel are required to report:

Teachers, administrators, supervisors of child welfare and attendance, certificated pupil
personnel employees, employees of a child care institution, head start teachers, school
psychologists, licensed nurses, counselors, presenters of child abuse prevention programs and
those instructional aides or other classified employees trained in child abuse reporting.

“Child Protective Agencies” are those law enforcements and child protective services
responsible for investigating child abuse reports, including the local police or sheriff department,
county welfare or juvenile probation department and child protective services.

“Reasonable Suspicion” means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain such a
suspicion, based upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when
appropriate on his/her training and experience, to suspect child abuse. (California Penal Code 11166)

Reporting Procedures

1.

To report known or suspected child abuse, any employee (as defined above) shall report by
telephone to the local child protective agency.

The telephone report must be made immediately, or as soon as practically possible, upon
suspicion. The verbal report will include:

The name of the person making the report.

The name of the child.

The present location of the child.

The nature and extent of any injury.

Any other information requested by the child protective agency, including the
information that led the mandated reporter to suspect child abuse.

o0 o

pg. 11



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Monarch River Academy
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

At the time the verbal report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the official
contacted, the date and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received.

2. Within thirty-six (36) hours of making the telephone report, the mandated reporter will complete
and mail a written report to the local child protective agency.

The written report shall include completion of the required standard Department of Justice form
(DOJ SS 8572).

The mandated reporter may request and receive copies of the appropriate form either from the
school district or directly from the local child protective agency.

Detailed instructions for completion of the form are on the back sheet of the form. Reporters
may request assistance from the site administrator in completing and mailing the form; however,
the mandated reporter is still responsible for ensuring that the written report is correctly filed.

3. Employees reporting child abuse to a child protective agency are encouraged, but not required, to
notify the site administrator or designee as soon as possible after the initial verbal report by
telephone. The site administration, when notified, shall inform the Superintendent.

Administrators so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any assistance necessary to
ensure that the verbal or written reporting procedures are carried out according to state law and
district regulations. If requested by the mandated reporter, the Senior Director may assist in the
completion and filing of these forms.

Legal Responsibility and Liability
1. Mandated reporters have absolute immunity. School employees required to report are not civilly
or criminally liable for filing a required or authorized report of known or suspected child abuse.

pg. 12



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Monarch River Academy
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

2. A mandated reporter who fails to report an instance of child abuse, which he/she knows to exist
or reasonably should know to exist, is guilty of a misdemeanor and is punishable by confinement
in jail for a term not to exceed six (6) months or by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars
($1,000) or both. The mandated reporter may also be held civilly liable for damages for any
injury to the child after a failure to report.

3. When two (2) or more persons who are required to report jointly, have knowledge of suspected
instance of child abuse, and when there is agreement, and a single report may be made and
signed by the person selected. However, if any person who knows or should know that the
person designated to report failed to do so, that person then has a duty to make the report.

4. The duty to report child abuse is an individual duty and no supervisor or administrator may
impede or inhibit such reporting duties. Furthermore, no person making such a report shall be
subject to any sanction.

Release of Child to Peace Officer

When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child abuse,
the Senior Director shall not notify the parent or guardian as required in other instances of removal of a
child from school, but rather shall provide the peace officer with the address and telephone number of
the child’s parent or guardian.

It is the responsibility of the peace officer to notify the parent or guardian of the situation. Peace
officers will be asked to sign an appropriate release or acceptance of responsibility form (cf. 5145.11 —
Questioning and Apprehension).

pg. 13



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Monarch River Academy
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

When School Employees are Accused of Child Abuse

Regardless of who child abusers may be, the major responsibilities of mandated reporters are to (1) identify
incidents of suspected child abuse, and (2) comply with laws requiring reporting of suspected abuse to the
proper authorities. Determining whether or not the suspected abuse actually occurred is not the responsibility of
the school employee. Such determination and follow-up investigation will be made by a child protective
agency.

Parent/guardians or members of the public accusing school employees of child abuse should be made aware of
the ramifications of making false reports and should be provided with information regarding child abuse and
child abuse reporting.

Pending the outcome of an investigation by a child protective agency and prior to the filing of formal charges,
the employee may be subject to reassignment or a paid leave of absence.

Disciplinary action resulting from the filing of formal charges or upon conviction shall be in accordance with

district policies, regulations and/or collective bargaining agreements. The Senior Director or designee should
consult with legal counsel in implementing either suspension or dismissal.

pg. 14



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section C: Emergency/Disaster Plans - Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220 ADA

Part 1: General Information - Disaster

Monarch River Academy will take all necessary measures to keep students, staff and visitors safe in the event
of a disaster. The following sections of this plan outline basic responsibilities for all staff for specific incidents

The Monarch River Academy has developed a Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Plan that
outlines in more detail, specific responsibilities for Emergency Response Teams at this school.

This Emergency Action Plan is being developed to provide information to the staff at Monarch River Academy
to ensure pertinent information is available in the case of an incident that warrants a response. It is written in
accordance with California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 3220 which outlines the components required
for a plan. There are also components of the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and National
Incident Management System (NIMS), including the Incident Command System incorporated in this plan. The
purpose for the inclusion is that while Monarch River Academy may not have students on site, it will serve as an
Emergency Operations Center if a multi-site incident occurs and support is needed for school or local community.
At that time, the role of Monarch River Academy would be to serve as a resource and clearinghouse for
information.

The plan is developed with a multi-hazard perspective to make it applicable to the widest range of emergencies
and disasters, both natural and human caused. However, Administrators retain the flexibility to modify
procedures and/or organization structure as necessary to accomplish the emergency response and recovery
missions in the context of a particular hazard scenario.

The individual(s) responsible for implementation of this plan or to contact for any clarification is:

Name: Department:
Phone: Email:
Name: Department:
Phone: Email:

Plan Approval:

Name of Responsible Party Title
Signature Date

pg. 15


http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html

RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION

Plan #

Office/Department

Representative

Signature

pg. 16



EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS

FACILITY EMERGENCY NUMBERS

1)  Emergency Operations Center Insert Number
(Managing Director’s)

2)  Alternate Location Insert Number
(Office cell phone #)
LOCAL AGENCIES/OTHERS

1)  Local Police

2)  Local Fire

3)  American Red Cross

4)  Electric Utility Company

5)  Local Gas Company

6)  Local Water Company

In the event of a major emergency or disaster, the 9-1-1 emergency system may not function

because of traffic overload. If you have a situation requiring immediate aid from police, fire or
medical personnel you should try to use the 9-1-1 number first for immediate aid.

pg. 17



INTRUSION AND/OR FIRE ALARMS

If an intrusion or fire alarm goes off the company responsible for monitoring the system is (name of
company), (phone number).

PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

A key component to this plan is the Incident Command System (ICS). The five basic functions of: Management,
Operations, Logistics, Planning/Intelligence and Finance/Administration must remain consistent, but the
formation of the teams within those sections can be flexible to meet each school’s needs.

To properly complete the EOP, the school needs to: (1) Assign roles for Management staff and Section Chiefs
(2) form the site emergency teams, (3) provide the appropriate training for all staff (4) conduct exercises to test
the plan, and (5) update the plans as needed.

Employees shall be offered training on the specifics of this plan when it is initially developed and when new
employees are hired. Employees should be retrained when the plan changes due to a change in the layout or design
of the facility, when new equipment, hazardous materials, or processes are introduced that affect evacuation
routes, or when new types of hazards are introduced that require special actions. It would also be helpful to provide
annual awareness training as a reminder. General training for employees should address the following:

- Individual roles and responsibilities.

- Threats, hazards, and protective actions.

- Notification, warning, and communications procedures.
- Emergency response procedures.

- Evacuation, shelter, and accountability procedures.

- Location and use of common emergency equipment.

- Emergency shutdown procedures.

Additional training may also need to be provided (i.e. first-aid procedures, portable fire extinguisher use, etc.)
depending on the responsibilities allocated employees in the plan.

Once the emergency action plan has been reviewed with employees and everyone has had the proper training, it
is a good idea to hold practice drills as often as necessary to keep employees prepared. Include outside resources
such as fire and police departments when possible. After each drill, gather management and employees to evaluate
the effectiveness of the drill. Identify the strengths and weaknesses of your plan and work to improve it.

pg. 18



ABOUT EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

Through the years, those agencies responsible for disaster response have come up with
several different models for coordinating that response. Although these models differ, they
share a common background: The Incident Command System (ICS). As a member of your
school’s emergency response team, you will need to be familiar with ICS and the emergency
management systems used in California.

Incident Command System (ICS) Developed in the 1970’s by Southern California Fire
Protection Agencies, this system was designed to coordinate multi-jurisdictional response.
The beauty of ICS is that it is based upon common terminology and on the division of
response activities into five functional units that essentially eliminates the possibility of the
duplication of efforts. ICS became the model for the state’s system.

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Developed in response to the
lack of agency and multi-jurisdictional coordination during the Oakland Fires of 1991,
SEMS became the state-wide standard for coordinated emergency response. All agencies
involved in emergency response are legally required to use SEMS. In fact, the STATE
reimbursement of local costs incurred for emergency response/recovery is tied to the use of
SEMS.

National Incident Management System (NIMS) After the national tragedy on September
11, 2001, it became clear that the country needed an emergency response system to address
incidents that affected the entire nation. The national government looked at the system used
in California and used it as a model to develop a national response system called NIMS. It
is a FEMA approved emergency response system and will become the national model.
National compliance was expected by 2006 but is still in progress. FEDERAL funding for
emergency response/recovery grants is tied to the use of NIMS.

SCHOOL RESPONSE

In 1994 the State of California legislators passed the Petris Bill. This bill requires schools (who are
considered to be special districts) to use the SEMS model in planning for, and responding to, school
emergencies and disasters. HOMELAND SECURITY PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVE HSPD-5, which
mandated the development and implementation of NIMS, now requires schools to integrate that system

into their plans as well.

pg. 19



WHAT SPECIFIC LAWS* APPLY TO SCHOOLS

THE FIELD ACT
(Garrison Act and Riley Act)

Sets building code standards for construction and remodeling of public schools and assigns the responsibility
for assuring building code compliance to the Division of the State Architect.

THE KATZ ACT
Requires schools to establish an earthquake emergency system:

- Develop a disaster plan

- Conduct periodic drop and cover drills, evacuation procedures and emergency response
actions—once each quarter in elementary schools and once each semester in secondary
schools

- Provide training to students and staff in emergency response procedures

- Be prepared to have your school serve as a possible public shelter

- Take mitigation measures to ensure the safety of students and staff—
such as securing equipment and furniture.

pg. 20



PUBLIC EMPLOYEES ARE DISASTER SERVICE WORKERS
California Government Code Section 3100

All school employees are considered disaster service workers when:

o A local emergency has been proclaimed
o A state emergency has been proclaimed
or,
o A federal disaster declaration has been made

NOTE: During a declared disaster, school employees are required, by law, to
serve as disaster service workers and cannot leave their school site until
formally released.

o Certificated employees risk losing their teaching credentials
o Classified employees may be charged with a misdemeanor

*This is not a legal opinion, confirmation is required determine if your organization is exempt from any
regulations targeting schools. The assumption is that the laws apply to all public schools.

POST-DISASTER SHELTERS

Schools are required by both federal statute and state regulation to be available for
shelters following a disaster.

o The American Red Cross has access to schools to set up shelters
o Local governments have access to schools to set up shelters
o Plan and make arrangements in advance to assure that you are prepared.

THE PETRIS BILL
California Government Code Section 8607

Requires schools to respond to disasters using the Standardized Emergency
Management System (SEMS) by December 1996.

* [CS - (Incident Command System) organizing response efforts into five basic functions:
Management, Operations, Logistics, Planning/Intelligence and Finance/Administration

= EOC - (Emergency Operations Center) setting up a central area of control using the five basic
functions

* Coordinate all efforts with the operational area (county) EOC, city EOC and county office of
education EOC

* Incorporation of SEMS into all school plans, training and drills

* Documentation of the use of SEMS during an actual emergency

pg. 21



HOMELAND SECURITY PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVE HSPD-5
February 28, 2003

On February 28, 2003, President George W. Bush issued Homeland Security Presidential Directive
5 (HSPD-5). HSPD-5 directed the Secretary of Homeland Security to develop and administer a

National Incident Management System (NIMS).

HSPD-5 requires Federal departments and agencies to make the adoption of NIMS by state and local
organizations a condition for Federal preparedness assistance (grants, contracts and other activities)

by Fiscal Year 2005.

NIMS training requirements: All school employees (as designated Disaster Services Workers)

are to complete ICS100, ICS200 and 1S700.)
USING SEMS AND NIMS IN YOUR SCHOOL - AN OVERVIEW

Within SEMS and NIMS, an emergency response organization, known as the Incident Command
System, consists of five Sections:

Management: responsible for policymaking with respect to disaster planning and preparedness
and for the overall coordination of emergency response and recovery activities. This section has
four members, the EOC Director/Incident Commander (IC), the Public Information Officer (PI1O),
the Safety Officer, and the Liaison Officer (LO). In short: they are the leaders.

Planning/Intelligence: responsible for creating the action plans and checklists that will be used
by all of the sections during crisis response and recovery. The section is comprised of two teams:
the Situation Status Team and the Documentation Team. During an emergency, these teams gather,
analyze, disseminate, and record information critical to the functioning of the Management
Section. Planning/Intelligence are often referred to as the thinkers.

Operations: responsible for response preparedness of the Assembly/Shelter, Communications,
Crisis Intervention, Light Search and Rescue, First Aid, Student Release/Staff Accounting, and
Maintenance/Fire/Site Security Teams. During a disaster, this section directs response activities of
all of these teams and coordinates that response with the Management Section. These folks
represent the doers.

Logistics: prior to a disaster, this section is in charge of creating a transportation plan, and ensuring
that there are adequate supplies of food, water, and equipment for crisis response. During an
emergency, the section’s two teams, the Supplies/Staffing Team and the Transportation Team
provide services, personnel, equipment, materials, and facilities, as needed. They are the getters.

Finance/Administration: in charge of creating policies and procedures for documenting costs
associated with emergency response. This section has one team, called the Recordkeeping Team.
During a disaster, they activate contracts with vendors, keep time records, track receipts, and
account for expenditures. Their efforts make it possible for schools to reclaim costs associated
with response and recovery activities from the state. They also gather all paperwork and
documentation at the end of the incident for inclusion in the After Action Report (AAR). They
are called the payers.

pg. 22



THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER

During an emergency, the Management Section gathers together in an area/room to set-up a
“command center” also known as the Emergency Operations Center (EOC). In the EOC, the
Management Section makes decisions affecting response activities based upon information

coming in from the Section Chiefs.
A Word About Unified Command

The control of and response to emergencies is the sole responsibility of the site teams until first
responders arrive. Once they arrive, incident command transitions to “Unified Command.”
This transition is immediately facilitated by an on-site briefing of first responders by the
Management Staff and Section Chiefs. Following the initial briefing, the site’s Incident
Commander will begin to work closely with representatives of each response agency to plan
and carry out response activities. Other employees may be asked to participate as well,
depending upon the incident at hand and the available staffing of emergency responders. All
staff should be prepared to participate if necessary.

In the EOC, this means that first responder representatives will essentially be running response
activities in consultation with the organization’s Management Staff and Section Chiefs. In the
field, Team Leaders and Team Members will work alongside first response teams, unless the
EOC Director/Incident Commander has deemed it is too dangerous or unsafe for them to do so.
Remember, first responders are professionals. Work with them and take your cues from them.

pg. 23



The Dual Role of the School Office

e The School must organize to respond to incidents that occur at their location

— Ensure that the School has a functional Emergency Action Plan

— Ensure that School staff are trained and well prepared

e The School office must also organize to provide support when the incident happens at school sites

within the organization
Provide leadership

Ensure that school staff are trained and well prepared

Provide assistance with response and recovery, when needed

— Ensure that each school has a functional Emergency Operations Plan

INCIDENT COMMAND SYSTEM AND DIVISION OF LABOR

I MANAGEMENT

Planning/
Intelligence

Finance/
Administration

Divisions of Labor

Each one of the five functions have certain roles and responsibilities during a disaster or school emergency. The
Management Section oversees response activities in consultation with the Chiefs of the Operations, Logistics,
Planning/Intelligence, and Administration/Finance Sections. Each of these sections in turn, has a team or teams
tasked with implementing very specific components of the emergency response plan.

pg. 24



INSERT SITE MAP

(include life and fire safety elements, i.e. fire extinguishers, first aid kits, emergency supplies, etc.)

pg. 25



INSERT STAFF ROSTER

pg. 26



The following Standard Operating Procedures have been developed to address a multitude of incidents that could
occur at a school office or student location. This is a living document that should be updated and modified as
additional information is acquired. A hazard assessment should be conducted to identify specific areas of concern
for your location in order to maximize the number of response situations included in this plan.

EVACUATION PROCEDURES

Earthquakes, fire, bomb threats, hazardous chemical spill, or an incident on or near campus are just a few
examples of an emergency incident situation that may require that portions of a building or an entire school
building be evacuated.

The building Emergency Preparedness Committee should identify evacuation areas on site and alternative oft-
sites areas should it be necessary to evacuate.

A safe evacuation route must be able to accommodate moving a large number of people, while not exposing
employees to danger. The location and type of emergency necessitates evaluation and possible adjustments to the
usual evacuation routes. This evaluation will determine if the building should be evacuated in segments or if
stationing a person at certain exits is necessary so that staff can be re-routed away from danger.

The movement of staff out of buildings requires accounting for every employee. In order to account for staff,
work area supervisors must have available employee lists so that missing or extra staff can be reported
immediately to the Command Posts (school; law enforcement; fire). When evacuating their work area, work site
supervisors must bring with them the location roster and emergency supplies.

During an evacuation, the following procedures must be followed:
Move staff to the designated Evacuation Area.

Take roll by completing Staff Accountability Form
Runners collect Staff Accountability Report from classroom or work areas.

NENENEY

If employee has an assignment on Emergency Management Team Organizational Chart, report to the
Command Post (CP) and sign in.

&

Report to Incident Commander (IC) for briefing and assignment.

pg. 27



LOCKDOWN/REVERSE EVACUATION PROCEDURES

Some emergencies may prevent safe evacuation and require steps to isolate staff from danger by instituting a
lockdown. Other emergencies may occur prior to the work day, during break or lunch periods, or after the work
day. When staff may be outside the school building or work site, a reverse evacuation should be initiated.

All employees and must be familiar with the specific actions they must take during a lockdown or reverse
evacuation. Discussions, training, and practice drills are essential to make these procedures workable.
In the event of a lockdown or reverse evacuation, work area supervisors must utilize the following procedures:

v

SSENENENENEN

If outside, move to the nearest building or room providing it is a safe route and that you are not moving
in the direction of danger.

If inside, stay inside.

Lock door(s) to buildings and or work areas.

If possible, quickly close all windows and then move away from the windows.
Use caution when allowing late reporting staff to enter into a classroom.

Have staff hide, if appropriate.

Take roll using Staff Accountability Form.

Report any “extra” staff that sought cover in your work area. Take this form with you if you are directed by the

v

v

Incident Commander to evacuate your work area at a later time.

Await further instructions from the Incident Commander via public address system, phone or an e-mail
notification to all staff.

DO NOT use the telephone to call out as all lines must be keep open, unless there is a dire emergency in
your work area.

Remain in the room/office until a member of the Emergency Management Team or a law enforcement
officer arrives with directions.

pg. 28



PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING A “SIZE-UP”

A “SIZE-UP” is a nine-step continual data gathering process that determines if it is safe to perform a certain
emergency task, whether fire suppression, search and rescue, facilities assessment, etc. A size-up enables first
responders to make decisions and respond appropriately in the areas of greatest need. The nine steps in a “size-
up” are:

1. Gather Facts:
e What has happened?
How many people are involved?
What is the current situation?
Does the time of day or week affect this situation?
Do weather conditions affect the situation (e.g. forecast, temperature, wind, rain)?
What type(s) of structures are involved?
Are buildings occupied? If yes, how many?
Are there special considerations involved (e.g. children, elderly, disabled)?
Are hazardous materials involved at or near the situation?
Are other types of hazards likely to be involved?

2. Assess and Communicate the Damage:
e Take a lap around each building and try to determine what has happened, what is happening now, and
what may happen next.
e Are normal communications channels functioning (e.g. ICS, radios, e-mail, phones)?

3. Consider Probabilities:
e What is likely to happen?
e What is the worst-case scenario?

4. Assess Your Own Situation:
e Are you in immediate danger?
e Have you been trained to handle this situation?
e What resources are available which can assist with your current situation?

5. Establish Priorities:
e Are lives at risk? Remember, life safety is the first priority!
e (Can you and available resources handle this situation SAFELY without putting others at risk?
e Are there more pressing needs at the moment? If yes, what are they?

6. Make Decisions:
e Base decisions on the answers to Steps 1 through 3 and the priorities that your team has established.
e Where will deployment of resources do the most good while maintaining an adequate margin of safety?

7. Develop an INCIDENT ACTION PLAN:
e Develop a plan that will help you accomplish your priorities.

pg. 29



Simple plans may be verbal, but more complex plans should always be written.
Determine how personnel and other resources should be deployed.

8. Take Action:

Execute your plan, documenting deviations and status changes so that you can accurately report the
situation to first responders, the Incident Command Post, the EOC, or other agencies that respond to the
scene (e.g. fire, law enforcement, medical, media, coroner, parents).

9. Evaluate Progress:

At reasonable intervals, evaluate progress in accomplishing the objectives in the plan of action

(Incident Action Plan) to determine what is working and what changes you may have to make to stabilize the

situation

BOMB THREAT

TELEPHONE BOMB THREAT

During the call, complete the bomb threat checklist found on the next page.

Stay on the line with the caller as long as possible, continuing to try and obtain more information about
the threat.

Have someone else call 911 (first 9 is to obtain outside line) and notify the School office.

Without using portable radios or cell phones, organize a meeting with the school’s Emergency
Management Team (EMT). Radio and cell phone usage can resume once you are 300 feet away from
school premises as a bomb could be hidden outside.

If necessary, implement the ICS with only those positions deemed necessary.

Assign a recorder to document events as they take place.

Any search of the site should be done under the direction of law enforcement.

The decision to evacuate the location is the responsibility of the Senior Director or his/her designee.

If an evacuation is ordered, do not touch anything while leaving the building. Report any suspicious items
to the Incident Commander.

Follow off-site evacuation procedures.

If the caller identifies a location where the device has been placed, avoid evacuating through the identified
area.

EMT members responsible for off-site evacuation and student accounting should begin making
preparations for an orderly transition of the students/staff to the evacuation site.

If an announcement is made over the school PA to evacuate, remind teachers and site supervisors to bring
their class or work area rosters and emergency supplies.

When the off-site evacuation location is reached, account for all students and staff. Report missing
students/staff to the Incident Commander. The Incident Commander will report missing students/staff to
the law enforcement agency assisting with the evacuation.

Re-entry onto the school campus can only take place at the direction of Incident Commander.

E-MAIL BOMB THREAT

Save the e-mail message.
Print a copy of the message and give to the Senior Director, law enforcement, and the Technology
Department.

pg. 30



e Follow applicable procedures from above.

pg. 31



BOMB THREAT REPORT FORM:

School:

This form will help you obtain the necessary information from the caller. Keep this information near the phone.

Date: Time: AM PM
Exact words of the person placing call:

QUESTIONS TO ASK:
1.) When is the bomb going to explode?

2.) Where is the bomb right now?
3.) What kind of bomb is it?
4.) What does it look like?
5.) Why did you place the bomb?

6.) What will prevent you from doing this?

7.) What is your name? (He/she may inadvertently give it)

TRY TO DETERMINE THE FOLLOWING: (Circle all that apply)
Caller Description: Male Female Adult Juvenile Middle Aged Old

Voice: Loud Soft High-pitch Deep Raspy Pleasant Intoxicated
Accent: Local Non-Local Foreign Region Other:
Speech: Fast ~ Slow  Distinct Distorted Stutter Nasal Slurred Lisp
Language: Excellent Good Fair Poor Foul Other:
Manner: Calm Angry Rational Irrational Coherent Incoherent Deliberate = Emotional
Righteous Laughing Intoxicated
Background Noises: Office Machines = Factory Machines  Trains  Animals Music Quiet Voices
Airplanes  Street Traffic  Party Atmosphere Other:

NOTIFY THE FOLLOWING PERSON(S):

Do not panic and do not discuss the information you have received except with the above-named persons.

Person receiving the Bomb Threat: _at telephone

number

Caller ID returned the following number:

Police contacted by:

Time: Date:

Search was made for the bomb: Y N Evacuation was conducted: 'Y N

pg. 32



FIRE/EXPLOSION

Apart from arson, major causes of fires include improper handling and storage of flammable liquids, overloaded
electrical outlets, and excessive accumulation of rubbish.

FIRE DRILL PROCEDURES

NO advance notice of fire drills should be given to building occupants.

All drills shall be conducted using the same procedures that would be followed in case of an actual fire.
Fire drills should be conducted at different hours of the day.

An appropriate number of staff members should know how to reset the fire alarm.

Immediately after the alarm has sounded for the drill, call the Fire Department non-emergency number to
advise that this is only a drill.

Keep documentation for each drill and record notable events for future consideration/improvement.

POSTING OF EVACUATION ROUTES

A map, showing the primary and secondary evacuation routes shall be posted inside each room. The
evacuation map shall have the office location highlighted and be placed on the wall so that an arrow
indicating the exit route is pointing in the direction of the exit from the room.

The map shall be labeled “EVACUATION PLAN” in bold letters and prominently posted in hallways,
offices, bathrooms, cafeterias, lounges.

FIRE/EXPLOSION CHECKLIST

If fire or smoke is detected, or a burning odor is sensed, pull the closest fire alarm to initiate building
evacuation procedures.

Call 911 to report all known information about the incident.

Site administration should assign a recorder to begin documentation of the event.

Before leaving a work area, the work area supervisor or their designee should make sure all windows are
closed.

Procedures for anyone with special-needs should be planned in advance and practiced.

Administration should initiate the Incident Command System (ICS) and the designee assumes the role of
the Incident Commander (IC) and establishes a Command Post staging area.

Supervisors are to complete the Staff Accountability Report.

Data collected from the Staff Accountability Form will determine if the Incident Commander needs to
activate additional portions of the ICS, such as First Aid, Medical, Search and Locate/Rescue, etc.
Establish contact with fire and law enforcement agencies.

The fire department will give clearance to site administration when it is OK for staff to re-enter the
building or an alternative plan if the building will not be able to be occupied.

pg. 33



EARTHQUAKE

An earthquake’s effect on facilities will vary from building to building. Fire alarm or sprinkler systems may be
activated by the shaking. Elevators and stairways will need to be inspected for damage before they can be used.
Another major threat during an earthquake is from falling objects and debris. Injuries may be sustained during
the earthquake while evacuating the building(s) or upon re-entry. Use the following guidelines/procedures to
manage the incident:

IF INDOORS
e DROP, COVER AND HOLD ON by getting under a desk or table. Protect eyes, head and neck.
e Move away from windows and objects that could fall.
e Stay under desk or table until shaking stops.
e Listen for emergency instructions.
e Evacuate building if necessary and stay away from buildings, utility poles and large objects while
transferring to the assembly area.
e Account for all staff using Staff Accountability Report.
IF OUTDOORS
e Move away from buildings, utility poles and large objects.
e Avoid all downed electrical lines.
e Do not touch any wire or any metal objects.
e Sit down in a safe area.
e Move to assembly area and begin accounting for all staff.
IN VEHICLE:
e Stop vehicle in a safe location away from power lines, overpasses or buildings.
e Stay in vehicle and establish radio contact with School office.

GENERAL GUIDELINES (AFTER THE QUAKE):

Be prepared for aftershocks and ground motion.

Evaluate immediate area for earthquake related hazards (fire, building collapse, gas leaks, downed
electrical lines, wires, etc.).

Account for all staff.

Activate necessary portions of the ICS in collaboration with the site emergency team.

Determine injuries and provide basic first aid via Medical/First Aid Group.

Call 911 if there is a major emergency that is life threatening. You may not get a response from 911 if a
major disaster has occurred affecting a large local area. As we have been warned, we may be on our
own for several hours or days.

Establish communication with your Supervisor and Incident Commander

Assist any law enforcement or fire units that may respond to your site.

Control internal and external communications, including contact with school sites and city agencies by
use of telephones, cell phones, radios, runners, e-mail, text messages, or other means.

Refer all media inquiries to the PIO.

In communication with the school sites, assess the overall situation, how long students and staff might be
at school, how supplies might be distributed and sheltering of students and staff.

pg. 34



SHOOTING/STABBINGS

No single warning sign can predict that a dangerous act will occur; however, certain warning signs may indicate
that someone is close to behaving in a way that is potentially dangerous to self and/or others. Imminent warning
signs usually are present as a sequence of overt, serious, or hostile behaviors or threats directed at peers, staff
(usually more than one staff member), as well as the person’s immediate family.

IMMINENT WARNING SIGNS REQUIRE AN IMMEDIATE RESPONSE AND MAY INCLUDE THE
FOLLOWING

Physically fighting with peers or family members.

Hostile interactions with law enforcement that involve a number of recorded incidents.
Hostile interactions with staff and administration.

Destruction of property (school, home, community).

Severe rage for seemingly minor reasons.

Detailed (time, place and method) threats (written and/or oral) to harm or kill others.
Possession and/or use of firearms and other weapons.

Self-injurious behaviors or threats of suicide.

Is carrying a weapon, particularly a firearm, and has threatened to use it.

WHAT TO DO IF A SHOOTING/STABBING OCCURS AT THE SCHOOL OFFICE

The first indications of a shooting may include: sound of gunfire, loud cracking sounds, banging noises,
windows shattering, glass exploding, bullets ricocheting or a report of a stabbing incident on campus.
Call 911. Identify your address, and succinctly explain the emergency incident and exact location. Stay
on the line until the 911 dispatcher has all the information needed to respond to the situation.

Activate Incident Command System (ICS) with Emergency Management Team.

Establish Command Post and appoint Incident Commander and communicate location to law enforcement
and fire/rescue units.

Notify appropriate individuals, i.e. Administrators, Policy Group.

Provide information, when practicable, about the incident to staff via PA system, e-mail or by phone.
Account for all staff members by using phone or e-mail or other communication means. Attempt to
determine if the shooter/stabber is still on the work site.

Attempt to determine if the weapon has been found or secured.

Attempt to determine if the shooter/stabber has been identified.

Assign a liaison (preferably an administrator) to interface with law enforcement and fire department.
Liaison can supply law enforcement with radio or phone communication, phone numbers, maps, keys,
and other information deemed pertinent to the safe operation of the incident.

Gather witnesses in secure room for law enforcement questioning. DO NOT allow witnesses to talk to
one another (to protect the investigation). Assign staff to stay with witnesses until law enforcement
arrives.

Develop plan to evacuate staff to an off-site or alternate evacuation area should it be necessary to evacuate
the building.

Gather information of staff members involved in the incident.

Prepare written statements for telephone callers and media in cooperation with law enforcement and the
Senior Director. Can a message be placed on the website?

Provide a liaison representative for family members for any injured staff members.

Provide Crisis Response Team to provide counseling and to help deal with any psychological factors.

IF STAFF ARE OUTSIDE, THEY SHOULD BE TRAINED AND/OR INSTRUCTED TO

Move or crawl away from gunfire, trying to put barriers between you and the shooter.

pg. 35



Understand that many barriers may visually conceal a person from gunfire but may not be bulletproof.
Try to get behind or inside a building. Stay down and away from windows.

When reaching a relatively safe area, stay down and do not move. Do not peek or raise head.

Listen for directions from law enforcement.

Provide your name to work area supervisor who is accounting for all staff.

Help others by being calm and quiet.

Provide law enforcement with as much information as possible, such as:

Is suspect still on site and do you know current location?
Where was the specific location of occurrence?
Are there wounded staff members? How many?

NENENEY

Description of all weapons (hand gun, shotgun, automatic, dangerous objects, explosive devices,
other).

Vv Describe sound and number of shots fired.

SCENE OF INCIDENT

e The scene of an incident/crime shall be preserved.

e With the exception of rescue and law enforcement personnel, no one is allowed to enter the immediate
area or touch anything.

e Any witnesses, including staff members, should be held near the area of the incident and be made available
to law enforcement for questioning.

e Law enforcement responding to the incident will coordinate activities at the scene of the incident and
finished, release the area to school officials when finished.

pg. 36



DEATH AND/OR SUICIDE

Death at a workplace is rare; however, you should be prepared in the event of a death whether it be caused by
earthquake, explosion, building collapse, fire, choking, heart attack, seizure, or an incident such as a
shooting/stabbing, fight, suicide, etc.

Organizations should also be prepared for the sudden, unexpected death of a staff member or a family member
that does not occur on the school campus (automobile accident, sudden death, drive by shooting, gang violence,

etc.).

Guidelines to utilize in the event of a death are outlined below.
DEATH OCCURS AT SCHOOL

Call 911. Identify your address and briefly outline the emergency and location on campus.
Notify the school administration.
Activate the Incident Command System if necessary and contact the school Emergency Management
Team. Assign staff as needed.
Notify the Managing Director’s office.
Isolate other staff from scene.
If there is a death, do not move body. Law enforcement will contact the coroner’s office so that the body
can be removed, and any personal items of the victim can be returned to family or secured as evidence.
DO NOT disturb or touch anything if the event is declared a crime scene.
Secure area with yellow caution tape and assign staff to guard area.
Gather all witnesses and place them in a secure location. Tell witnesses not to discuss any part of their
observations until law enforcement arrives to interview or release them. Assign staff to monitor witnesses.
Consider impact on staff. Activate the Crisis Response Team as appropriate.
If the deceased is an employee, the Senior Director must notify Cal-OSHA within the 8-hour time
requirement. Law enforcement or fire department may inform you they will contact Cal-OSHA; however,
the School still must make certain it calls Cal-OSHA.
Monitor staff emotional responses. Following a death there may be:

V' Self-referrals

v/ Parent referrals
v Reports and concerns expressed by relatives or good friends

v/ Students who have experienced a recent loss.
Develop a list of students and staff members that are having emotional symptoms.

pg. 37



HOSTAGE SITUATIONS

In any hostage situation, the primary concern must be the safety of staff.

Individuals who take hostages are frequently disturbed and the key to dealing with them is to make every attempt
to avoid antagonizing them. Communication and demeanor with a hostage taker must be handled in a non-
threatening, non-joking manner, always remembering that it may take very little to cause an individual to become

violent.
IF THE OFFICE IS TAKEN HOSTAGE

99 <6

Do not use words such as “hostage,” “captives,” or “negotiate.”

Stay calm.

No heroics, challenges or confrontation.

Obey all commands.

When safe, call 911. Identify your work site and give the exact location in the building of the incident.
Stay on the phone until law enforcement arrives to assume control of the situation.

If possible, assign another staff member to notify the Site administrator.

If possible, initiate a work site lockdown to stabilize areas around the incident and make for an easier
evacuation.

The work site emergency team shall activate the Incident Command System and make needed assignments
including staging a Command Post (CP) and appointing an Incident Commander (IC).

If possible, the emergency team should provide law enforcement with a liaison from the work site. The
liaison can assist in providing name of IC, location of CP and obtaining maps, keys, radio and phone
numbers, etc.

Keep all radios, television sets, and computers turned off to minimize any possibility that suspect can hear
or see “NEWS REPORTS.”

Make an effort to establish rapport with suspect. Provide your first name. Find out his/her first name and
use first names, including those of other staff members involved in the situation. If you do not know first
names, refer to the hostages(s) as men, and women.

Be calm and patient and wait for help. Keep in mind that the average hostage incident lasts approximately
six (6) to eight (8) hours, and the average barricade incident lasts approximately three (3) hours. TIME
IS ON YOUR SIDE.

Anticipate a point of law enforcement entry, rescue and how suspects will be apprehended.

WHEN THE HOSTAGE LOCATION IS OTHER THAN AN OFFICE

Immediately call 911. Identify your address and the situation, providing the exact location of the incident.
STAY ON THE LINE UNTIL LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES.
While on the phone with the 911 dispatcher report the following if known:

v/ Number of suspect(s)
v/ Names(s) of suspect(s) (if known)
v/ Description of suspect(s):
> Male or Female
Race
Weight (Light; Lean; Heavy; Obese) stay away from using Ibs.
Height (short; medium; tall) avoid using feet/inches
Hair
Eyes

YYyVYyYYy

pg. 38



> Approximate age

> Description of clothing

> Anything special or unusual, like:
o Scars

Tattoos

Burn marks

Birthmarks

Pierced body parts

o Jewelry

0O O O O

Exact location of suspect (building, room) and include North, South, East or West in your directions.
Approximate number of staff in hostage area.

Are weapons or explosive devices involved?

Have any shots been fired? If yes, describe sound and number of shots fired.

SNENENENEN

Are there reports of any injuries or emergency medical needs (medication)? Describe exact location
and condition of victim(s).

Are there any demands the suspect has made?

LN

Is there any other background information, past problems with suspect, demeanor, possible motive, or
vendettas against staff or particular staff member?

If the hostage situation is on one side of the building, law enforcement will likely want to enter
from the other side. Inform law enforcement exactly where the “Hostage Situation” is located and advise law
enforcement what you consider to be the best “other side” entrance for law enforcement response.

e [fpossible, assign another staff member to notify the Site Administrator.

WHILE WAITING FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
e If you can safely communicate to other offices by phone, implement lockdown procedures. For this
situation, DO NOT set off any alarms as the bell may cause staff to panic and rush into a dangerous area.
e DO NOT EVACUATE until instructed or escorted by law enforcement.
e Complete Staff Accountability Report.

ONCE LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES
e Law enforcement will need assistance in identifying witnesses. Gather witnesses in a secure location but

do not let them talk with one another (to protect the investigation).

THE SITE EMERGENCY TEAM SHOULD MAKE PLANS TO
e [Establish their Command Posts and assignment of necessary personnel.
Record all events.
Account for all staff.
Prepare for a possible off-site evacuation route and location.
Establish a media staging area.
Alert Crisis Response Team for possible counseling of staff.

HOSTILE VISITOR

A hostile visitor could be an irate parent, a staff member, a neighbor, or an acquaintance of a staff member. The
situation may begin in the front office; however, the individual may bypass the office and go directly to the target

pg. 39



of his/her hostility. It is the responsibility of staff to protect staff, attempt to defuse the situation, and, if necessary,
notify law enforcement.

UNDERSTANDING NONVERBAL MESSAGES

Body language plays a role in communication. Nonverbal cues are especially crucial when dealing with a person
who is upset and potentially violent. Pay attention to signs that a person is angry or frightened. These include:

Trembling

Sweating

A red face

Crossed arms
Clenched jaw or fists
Shallow breathing
Glaring or avoiding eye contact
Pacing the floor
Sneering

Crying

Ranting

SEND THE RIGHT NONVERBAL MESSAGES

Don’t get too close. An angry or upset person feels threatened by someone who stands too close. Give the person
two to four feet distance from you.

Avoid doing any of the following:

Glaring or staring at the visitor
Threatening mannerisms such as clenched fists and a raised voice.
Getting angry

Consider doing the following:

Be courteous and confident

Do not touch the individual

Protect yourself at all times

Find another staff member to join you or keep the meeting in an open area
Listen to the visitor, giving him/her the opportunity to vent

Do not disregard the person’s opinion or blame the person.

ATTEMPT TO USE PHRASES SUCH AS:

What can we do to make this better?
I understand the problem and I am concerned.
We need to work together on this problem.

WHAT TO DO:

As soon as possible, call 911 and stay on the line. State your address, and exact location of hostile visitor.
Identify building by letter (A, B, C, D, etc.) or number and use directions (North, South, East or West) for
law enforcement as they enter the grounds. Give a description of the hostile visitor.

If possible, assign a staff member to meet law enforcement and direct them to the location.

The staff member should unlock any gate that makes access to campus easier and faster.

If possible, notify the Site Administrator.

If necessary, activate the Incident Command System, using only those parts of ICS as determined by the
information at hand. Expand ICS as needed.

pg. 40



e Use staff members to keep staff away from the location of the hostile visitor.

pg. 41



CHEMICAL RELEASE/ HAZARDOUS MATERIAL SPILL
A chemical release or hazardous material spill could affect one classroom, an entire worksite or larger area.
HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OFFICE PREPARE?

The Emergency Management Teams should discuss and review plans to “Shelter in Place” or to “Evacuate
the Area” using an alternative evacuation staging area.

Staff should be trained to know what type of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and clothing to wear
when handling hazardous material. The type of PPE to be worn, if any, is contained in the Safety Data
Sheet (SDS).

Staff utilizing or handling any hazardous material, should know the symptoms of exposure, emergency
first aid and treatment for exposure.

All hazardous materials should be stored in a manner prescribed on the SDS.

HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OR DISTRICT RESPOND?

If a hazardous spill or chemical release occurs within any area of the School office, immediately notify
911. Inform the dispatcher of your school/address and a brief summary of the problem including the name
of the hazardous material/chemical, location of the spill and a report of any injuries, illnesses, fire,
explosion, etc.

Approach incident from upwind.

Stay clear of all spills (vapors, fumes, smoke, fire, possibility of explosion, other).

Notify Site Administrator.

Activate necessary portions of Incident Command System (ICS) and appoint Incident Commander.
Expand ICS as needed and make necessary assignments appropriate to incident.

Begin documentation of events.

The situation or advice from law enforcement, fire department or a hazardous materials unit deployed to
the scene of the spill will determine whether to “Shelter-In-Place” or to “Evacuate” the building. If
evacuation is ordered, instruct staff to always move crosswind and upwind. Never move downwind into a
chemical. To check wind direction, look at movement of trees or flag.

If “Sheltering-In-Place” and, if possible, shut off all air-conditioning and heating units. Close all windows
and door openings and try to seal gaps under doorways and windows with wet cloth or towels.

Close all shades or drapes. Instruct staff to stay away from windows.

If gas or vapors have entered the building, take shallow breaths through a cloth or towel.

Keep telephones lines clear for emergency calls.

If an evacuation is ordered, follow all instructions.

Upon reaching alternative evacuation area, take head count and report missing or ill staff to Incident
Commander and/or law enforcement.

MEDICAL EMERGENCY
Occasionally a medical emergency will occur, and personnel must be prepared to respond quickly, effectively,
and efficiently.

SOME EMERGENCY PREVENTION/PREPAREDNESS GUIDELINES

Insist that all accidents be reported, even if no visible harm or injury occurred.
Follow established procedures for issuing medication.

pg. 42



WHAT TO DO IF A MEDICAL EMERGENCY OCCURS

Assess seriousness of injury and/or illness by doing START (Simple Triage and Rapid Treatment,
commonly called Thirty-Two-Can Do). If a staff member fails any of the three simple tests (Respirations,
Perfusion, and Mental), their medical status is IMMEDIATE (RED). Administer first aid or CPR as
needed.

Call 911 and be prepared to provide:

v
v
v
v
v

Your address, building letter (A, B, C, D, etc.), room or floor number
Describe illness or type of injury

How the illness or type of injury occurred

Age of'ill or injured staff member

Quickest way for ambulance to enter location on site

Notify the Senior Director.

Assign a staff member to meet and direct rescue services to location of injured party.

Notify staff member’s family of situation, including type of injury/illness, medical care being given and
location where staff has been transported.

When appropriate, advise other staff of situation.

Follow-up with staff member’s family.

pg. 43



GAS ODOR/LEAK
Natural gas has an additive that gives off a distinct odor allowing you to detect (smell) a leak. In most cases,
handling a gas leak involves:

e [solating the area and moving staff to safety.

e Eliminating potential ignition sources.

e Securing the leak.

The primary responsibility of the worksite staff is to determine how to safely house or evacuate staff and to protect
property. The following agencies should be contacted:
e Fire Department (Call 911)

e Site Administrator. Have a phone number for a point of contact if a leak is detected after business hours.
(see emergency contact list)
e Local Gas Company

GAS ODOR OR LEAK INSIDE A BUILDING
e Evacuate the building(s) and move to a safe assembly area as far away as possible from the targeted
building.
e Assign Emergency Management Team members to direct staff evacuating other buildings to stay away
from the building with odor/leak.
If necessary, activate the Incident Command System and establish Command Post.
Begin completing Staff Accountability Report.
Report any missing students and staff to Command Post.
Assign a liaison to interact with Fire Department, Gas Company or law enforcement.

IF GAS ODOR OR LEAK IS DETECTED OUTSIDE THE BUILDING
e [t may not be necessary to evacuate the building. Evacuation is called for only if odor seeps into a building.

pg. 44



SHELTER-IN-PLACE PROCEDURES

Why You Might Need to Shelter-In-Place

Chemical, biological, or radiological contaminants may be released accidentally or intentionally into the
environment. Should this occur, information will be provided by local authorities, TV or radio on how to protect
staff. Because information will most likely be provided on television and radio, it is important to keep a TV or
radio on, even during the workday or instructional time. The important thing is for you to follow instructions of
local authorities.

Following Are Actions to Follow at Your Worksite:

Follow reverse evacuation procedures to bring students and staff indoors.

If there are visitors in the building, provide for their safety by asking them to stay. When authorities
provide directions to “shelter-in-place”, they want everyone to take those steps now, where they are, and
not drive or walk outdoors.

Provide for answering telephone inquiries by having at least one telephone available in the room selected
to provide shelter for the Office Manager, or the person designated to answer these calls. This room
should also be sealed. There should be a way to communicate among all rooms where staff are sheltering-
in-place.

Ideally, provide a way to make announcements over the public address system from the room where the
site administrator takes shelter.

Provide directions to close and lock all windows, exterior doors and any other openings to the outside.

If there is danger of an explosion, direct that window shades, blinds, or curtains be closed.

Have employees familiar with the building’s mechanical system turn off all fans, heating and air
conditioning systems. Some systems automatically provide for exchange of inside air with outside air —
these systems, in particular, need to be turned off, sealed, or disabled.

Gather essential disaster supplies, such as nonperishable food, bottled water, battery-powered radios, first
aid supplies, flashlights, batteries, duct tape, plastic sheeting and plastic garbage bags.

Designate interior rooms(s) above the ground floor with the fewest windows or vents. The room(s) should
have adequate space for everyone to be able to sit in. Avoid overcrowding by selecting several rooms if
necessary. Large storage closets, utility rooms, meeting rooms, or conference room without exterior
windows will also work well.

Call emergency contacts and have the phone available if you need to report a life-threatening condition.
Bring everyone into the rooms that have been designated. Shut and lock the door.

Use duct tape and plastic sheeting (heavier than food wrap) to seal all cracks around the doors and any
vents into the room. Consider precutting plastic sheeting to seal windows, doors, and vents. Each piece
should be several inches larger than the space you want to cover so that it lies flat against the wall or
ceiling/. Label each piece with the location of where it fits.

pg. 45



EXTENDED POWER LOSS

In the event of extended power loss to a facility certain precautionary measures should be taken depending on
the geographical location and environment of the facility:

Unnecessary electrical equipment and appliances should be turned off in the event that power
restoration would surge causing damage to electronics and effecting sensitive equipment.
Facilities with freezing temperatures should turn off and drain the following lines in the event of
a long-term power loss.

Fire sprinkler system

Standpipes

Potable water lines

Toilets
Add propylene-glycol to drains to prevent traps from freezing
Equipment that contain fluids that may freeze due to long term exposure to freezing temperatures
should be moved to heated areas, drained of liquids, or provided with auxiliary heat sources.

Upon Restoration of heat and power:

Electronic equipment should be brought up to ambient temperatures before energizing to prevent
condensate from forming on circuitry.

Fire and potable water piping should be checked for leaks from freeze damage after the heat has
been restored to the facility and water turned back on.

pg. 46



GUIDELINES FOR SPEAKING TO THE MEDIA
When speaking to the media about emergencies, it is extremely important to adhere to the following guidelines:

= READ all press statements

= Re-state the nature of the incident; its cause and time of origin

= Describe the size and scope of the incident

= Report on the current situation

= Speak about the resources being utilized in response activities

= Reassure the public that everything possible is being done

= DO NOT release any names

= When answering questions be truthful; but consider the emotional impact the information could have upon
listeners

= Avoid speculation; do not talk “off the record”

* Do not use the phrase “no comment”

= Set up press times for updates

= Control media location

pg. 47



**SAMPLE PRESS RELEASE**

Event: EARTHOQUAKE Date: MARCH 1, xxx

Release #: 001 Time: 8:00 A.M.

TITLE OF RELEASE: LARGE EARTHQUAKE CAUSES MODERATE DAMAGE TO SCHOOL OFFICES IN
GENERIC COUNTY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

EXAMPLE....... At 5:25 a.m. on March 1, 2006 an earthquake measuring 7.2 on the Richter Scale caused moderate damage to
the NAME OF SCHOOL located at 1234 Anywhere Blvd. in Our Town, CA. There are no reports of injuries available. Search
and Rescue crews are searching the building at this time. Roadways leading to the location have been damaged and an overpass
on Hwy. 101 leading to the location has been damaged and is closed. The public is asked to remain clear of the area to allow
emergency responders to access the site. Parents are asked NOT to go to the location as this will hamper rescue efforts.

School Districts throughout the county are instructed to call in to the County Office of Education at -(XXX) XXX-XXXX - to
report any damage or injuries to their own buildings or their school sites following established school closure procedures.

Due to the magnitude of the earthquake and the damage throughout the county, the County Operational Area Emergency
Operations Center has been activated. Additional information can be obtained by called the Op Area Public Information
Hotline at XXX-XXXX.

Further details will be provided when available.

Next Scheduled Release: As needed
Hitt

pg. 48



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section C: Disaster Procedures

Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault

Biological and chemical weapons are unconventional warfare tactics that can be deployed upon the public with
little or no notice. Such weapons typically involve microscopic materials that may be organic or synthetically
manufactured in laboratories. Biological or chemical weapons can be in powder form, liquid, or vaporous.
Agents used in biological/chemical attacks include, but are not limited to: anthrax, smallpox, other harmful
viruses, various forms of nerve gas, tear gas, and other vaporous irritants. Pranks using stink bombs should also
be considered a chemical weapons attack.

There are several possible dispersion techniques to deliver biological and chemical agents. The following
procedures should be utilized in the event of an assault involving biological or chemical weapons.

Any possible biological/chemical weapons assault should be reported immediately to the Senior Director.
The Senior Director should notify law enforcement authorities immediately.

As necessary alert all site employees of the situation by intercom.

If the agent is delivered via aircraft:

All staff and students should be moved indoors.

Keep students inside and take roll.

Close and secure all doors and windows.

Ensure that the HVAC is shut down.

Cover vents with plastic or thick paper using tape to create a seal.

Inspect all windows and doors for cracks, gaps, or holes. Cover any with plastic or thick paper

using tape to create a seal.

3 Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Senior Director, Senior Director’s designee or
officers of emergency response agencies.

3 Immediately report any injuries or illnesses to the Senior Director, Senior Director’s designee or

officers of emergency response agencies.

pg. 49



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault

If the agent is delivered via dispersion device that is outdoors:

All staff and students should be moved indoors.

Keep students inside and take roll.

Close and secure all doors and windows.

Ensure that the HVAC is shut down.

Cover vents with plastic or thick paper using tape to create a seal.

Inspect all windows and doors for cracks, gaps, or holes. Cover any with plastic or thick paper

using tape to create a seal.

3 Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Senior Director, Senior Director’s designee or
officers of emergency response agencies.

3 Immediately report any injuries or illnesses to the Senior Director, Senior Director’s designee or

officers of emergency response agencies.

If the agent is delivered via dispersion device that is indoors:

o All staff and students should be evacuated to the school’s normal outdoor evacuation assembly
area unless that area may be affected by the assault. Role should be taken.
o Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Senior Director, Senior Director’s designee or

officers of emergency response agencies.
o The HVAC system should be shut down.

If the agent is delivered via the school’s HVAC system:

o All staff and students should be evacuated to the school’s normal outdoor evacuation assembly
area unless that area may be affected by the assault. Role should be taken.
o Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Senior Director, Senior Director’s designee or

officers of emergency response agencies.
o The HVAC system should be shut down.

In any situation involving biological or chemical weapons the Senior Director and staff must follow all
instructions given by officers of emergency response agencies. Monarch River Academy EOC will develop an
action plan to handle telephone inquiries, rumor control, media relations, public information, employee/student
crisis counseling, and facility damage assessment/control

pg. 50



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures

If you observe a suspicious object or potential bomb on property, DO NOT HANDLE THE OBJECT,
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY 911.

1. Receiving the Call

Make every attempt to keep the caller on the phone as long as possible to gain information. Try if possible, to
determine the gender and age of caller. Try if possible, to get the caller to tell you the exact location of the
bomb and the time of threatened detonation.

2. Notification Procedures

School Location communicate the above information to the following in this order:

° School Senior Director/Administrator
° Assistant Senior Directors or Deans

° Regional Coordinators

° Director of Student Activities

The Senior Director/Administrator will notify local law enforcement and Monarch River Academy District
office.

District Office will communicate the above information to the Executive Director’s Office. The Executive
Director’s office will notify local law enforcement.

Strictly follow the above notification procedures and do not discuss or notify others of the bomb threat since
this may create an unwarranted panic response at the facility.

3. Action Plan Procedures

If required to develop an action plan, the Senior Director/administrator may consult with the following: Senior
Directors and other administrators utilizing their expertise.

If the location of the bomb is not specifically designated, students will be kept in a secure location.

pg. 51



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures

The Senior Director will make the decision to evacuate the building. However, if possible, this decision should
be made in conjunction with law enforcement authorities after they arrive at the location.

The decision to search the building will be made in conjunction with law enforcement authorities and performed
by them.

Reoccupation of an evacuated building will be authorized by the Senior Director only after consulting with law
enforcement authorities.

pg. 52



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 4: Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident

If a hazardous material incident occurs off site, stay indoors and close all doors and windows (referred to as
taking “Shelter in Place”).

Notify 911 of the Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident.
If possible, determine the location of the spill in relation to facility buildings and wind direction.

Do not evacuate buildings until you are sure you will not be evacuating into an area which may be more
hazardous.

Follow all instructions given by the Fire Department when they arrive at the facility.

pg. 53



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 5: Earthquake Procedures

Indoors

DUCK, COVER, AND HOLD.

Get under desk or table. Move away from windows and objects that could fall. Stay under desk or table until
shaking stops.

Outdoors
Move away from building, utility poles and vehicles. Avoid all down wires or electrical lines. Do not run.

In School Bus
Stop vehicle in safe location away from power lines, overpasses or large buildings. Stay in vehicle and
establish radio contact with Transportation and/or District E.O.C.

General
Be prepared for immediate aftershocks and ground motion

Evaluate immediate area for earthquake related hazards (fire, building collapse, gas leaks, broken electrical
lines, wires etc.)

Evaluate immediate area (classroom, bus, etc.) for injuries or medical aid situations.
Call 9-1-1, if you have an immediate emergency such as a fire or serious injury.

Assist injured with First Aid treatment

Do not evacuate buildings or vehicles unless you have a hazard-related reason to do so.
Conduct a headcount to account for all personnel and students

Establish communications with your supervisor, Senior Director or District EOC and follow emergency
checklist and procedures.

Assist any police or fire units that respond to your location.

pg. 54



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 6: Explosion, Aircraft Crash or Similar Incident

If possible, Duck and Cover under a desk or table.

Notify 911 of the explosion or crash

Assist any injured requiring first aid treatment

If necessary because of fire, building damage etc., evacuate building

Assist any persons who would have physical problems evacuating the building.

Go to an outdoor evacuation/assembly area which is hazard free and not affected by the explosion or crash.

Keep fire lanes, streets and walkways open for emergency responders.
Stay in assembly area and account for all personnel and students.
Do not return to buildings until authorized by fire department or Senior Director

Information is provided to students at times of state testing, ingress and egress, safety

pg. 55



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 7: Fire Procedures

Call 911 to report a fire, stay one line and give specific information (name, address of school or facility).
Utilize manual pull station to activate building alarm system and evacuate building when you hear an alarm.

In the event of a small fire, notify 911 and then use the nearest fire extinguisher to control the fire if you have
been trained in their use.

Do not attempt to fight large fires, call 911 and evacuate building.

Assist students in building evacuation and proceed to outdoor school evacuation area or areas.
When evacuating buildings walk, do not run.

Do not use elevators for building evacuation or in an emergency.

If heavy smoke is present, crawl or stay near floor for breathable air.

Assist any individuals who would have physical problems evacuating the building.

Stay in the designated assembly area and account for all personnel and students.

Do not block fire lanes or areas used by the fire department

Do not re-enter building until authorized by fire department or the Senior Director.

If the fire is off site, wait for instructions from the Senior Director or District SENIOR DIRECTOR’S
DESIGNEE.

pg. 56



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 8: Flood Procedures

If a flood warning is received by a District school or location, notify Monarch River Academy Senior Director
immediately.

If a major flood warning is received at Monarch River Academy Office, Monarch River Academy EOC should
be activated.

Based upon the specific threat, Monarch River Academy EOC in conjunction with the Operational Area EOC
and SEMS system will develop an action plan to protect personnel, students and facilities.

Evacuation of specific schools, facilities or areas will be directed by Monarch River Academy EOC in
coordination with SEMS.

pg. 57



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 9: Lockdown/Civil Unrest Procedures

Any threatening disturbance should be reported immediately to the Senior Director/Administrator.

If the disturbance is affecting normal school or facility operations, the Senior Director/Administrator should
notify law enforcement authorities immediately.

As necessary, alert all site employees of the situation by intercom, Site staff must follow the instructions below:

If you are inside:

Close and lock all doors and windows immediately upon notification of situation

Keep all students inside and take roll

If feasible, move all students to a center point and keep low to the ground. Stay away from all doors and
windows.

Never open the door or window to anyone

Keep students inside classroom, regardless of lunch or recess until you are told by the Senior Director or
Senior Director’s designee that the situation has been resolved.

If you are outside:

Immediately have students and staff seek shelter if it is safe to do so. Drill with students and staff to go
to the nearest room to them.

If shelter is not available, ensure students lie flat on the ground immediately.

Children in restrooms should be instructed to stay there until directed to exit by the Senior Director or
Senior Director’s designee.

If situation is violent and may include the use of firearms, the Senior Director or Senior Director’s designee
should instruct all staff and students to lie face down on the floor and remain immobile.

Senior Director and staff must follow all instructions given by responding law enforcement.

If the event is major, the Senior Director will activate Monarch River Academy EOC to develop an Action Plan
to deal with the situation as well as the following:

A. Telephone inquiries and rumor control
B Media relations and public information
C. Employee/Student crisis counseling
D Facility damage assessment/control

pg. 58



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 10: Severe Windstorm Procedures

If a severe wind warning is received at District location, notify Monarch River Academy Senior Director
immediately.

If a severe wind warning is received at Monarch River Academy Office, Monarch River Academy EOC should
be activated.

Based upon the specific threat, Monarch River Academy EOC in conjunction with the Operational Area EOC or
City EOC will develop an action plan to protect personnel, students and facilities.

In general, if severe winds are affecting a school or facility, employees and students should be moved to the
interior core area of the building (inside wall on the ground floor) away from outside windows and doors.

Close all windows and blinds and avoid auditoriums, gymnasiums and other building locations that have large
roof areas or spans.

Avoid all areas that have large concentrations of electrical equipment or power cables.

Evacuation of specific schools, facilities or areas will be directed by Monarch River Academy EOC in
coordination with SEMS.

pg. 59



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 11: Suspicious Mail/Packages

All incoming mail and packages should be handled with caution.
Below are Indicators of suspicious mail and steps to take in the event that suspicious mail is received.

Mail that ...
.. is unexpected or from an unfamiliar source
.. has excessive postage
.. is addressed to someone who no longer works in Monarch River Academy
.. 1s addressed to a current employee but with the wrong title
.. contains several misspelled words on the envelope
.. marked with restrictive endorsements such as “Personal” or “Confidential”
.. has no return address or an address that cannot be verified
.. mail that is from a foreign country
.. shows a city or state in the postmark that doesn’t match the return address
.. 1s lopsided, oddly shaped, or has an unusual weight, given its size
.. has protruding wires, strange odors or stains
.. has powdery substance on the outside
.. has an unusual amount of tape on it
.. 1s ticking or making unusual sounds

Not all mail comes perfectly packaged or with accurate information on it, so it is important that employees

handling mail remain sensible in the screening of mail. However, prudent scrutiny conducted in a reasonable

manner can greatly reduce the school’s chances of becoming the victim of attack by mail.

pg. 60



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 11: Suspicious Mail/Packages

What to do with suspicious mail (general response):

Do not try to open the package or envelope.
Do not sniff, taste or shake the package.
Isolate the package.

Evacuate the immediate area; close the door.
Contact your supervisor and call 911.

Response to mail suspected of delivering biological/chemical agents in powder form:

NOTE:

Do not open an envelope or package with powder on the outside.

If powder is spilled from an envelope or package, do not try to clean up the powder.

Cover the spilled contents immediately with anything (clothing, paper, trash can).

Do not remove this cover.

Leave the room and close the door or otherwise prevent access to the room.

Wash your hands with soap and hot water.

Ensure that everyone who had contact with the piece of mail washes his/her hands with soap and hot
water.

Notify your supervisor.

Supervisor should immediately contact the local police (911) or the U.S. Postal Inspection Service
(626-405-1200).

Supervisor should notify Monarch River Academy s Office.

Remove heavily contaminated clothing as soon as possible and place inside a plastic bag or some
other container that can be sealed. This clothing should be given to the responding emergency
response units.

Shower with soap and water as soon as possible. Do not use bleach or other disinfectant on your
skin.

Make a list of all the people who were in the room or area, especially those who had contact with the
envelope or package. Provide this list to the emergency response teams investigating the incident.
Investigators will remove the envelope or package and conduct a thorough check of the area for
contamination.

If you are prescribed medicine as a result of this exposure, take it until instructed or until it runs out.

Contacting the U.S. Postal Service is less likely to create a media event than the local police but
their response may be slower.

pg. 61



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions Policies and Procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Monarch River Academy
— Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline

Note on Education Code: This requirement refers to EC 35291.5. This section reads:

35291.5. (a) On or before December 1, 1987, and at least every four years thereafter, each public school
may, at its discretion, adopt rules and procedures on school discipline applicable to the school.
For schools that choose to adopt rules pursuant to this article, the school discipline rules and
procedures shall be consistent with any applicable policies adopted by the governing board and
state statutes governing school discipline. In developing these rules and procedures, each school
shall solicit the participation, views, and advice of one representative selected by each of the
following groups: (1) Parents. (2) Teachers. (3) School administrators. (4) School security
personnel, if any. (5) For junior high schools and high schools, pupils enrolled in the school... (b)
The governing board of each school district may prescribe procedures to provide written notice
to continuing pupils at the beginning of each school year and to transfer pupils at the time of
their enrollment in the school and to their parents or guardians regarding the school discipline
rules and procedures adopted pursuant to subdivision (a)...(d) The governing board may review,
at an open meeting, the approved school discipline rules and procedures for consistency with
governing board policy and state statutes.

Monarch River Academy includes rules and guidelines in the: Student/Parent Handbook. Given to all
families upon enrollment.

Board Policy for Suspensions and Expulsions
Philosophy of Student Discipline

Our focus for all students is to be respectful and supportive of each other.

pg. 62



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Process and Procedures

Level I - Immediate Redirection and Verbal Reprimand

Minor issues that are resolved by the supervising adult; behavior is seen as a learning opportunity and is
expected to be corrected with no additional interventions; office referral is only needed if the
student fails to correct behavior (mostly classroom managed behavior)

Level II - Learning Opportunity~Office Referral, Parent contact, Counselor

Common misbehaviors needing redirection; again seen as a learning opportunity to be handled between the
student and supervising adult; in some cases office referral and parent notification is required
(mostly managed with teacher)

Level III - Immediate Administrative referral; Parent Contact/Written Documentation, suspensions,
Law Enforcement

Severe misbehaviors with potentially strong consequences including school suspensions and legal
involvement; supervising adult is not expected to engage in any learning, but rather immediately
refer student to the office and insure the safety of staff and students (managed by director)

Administrative Referral

In some cases, student behaviors do not get corrected, or are so severe that they do not allow for a safe and
purposeful learning environment. By referring a student to an administrator, the teacher is
seeking additional resources to assist in the correction of the behavior. At this point, parents and
school administration join the teacher in attempts to meet the behavioral needs of the student.

The following process will be used for all office referrals:

Student is referred to Administration by supervising adult

Student completes reflection questions related to incident

Referral form is returned to the teacher for comments

Parental contact is made by the student or staff member to explain incident and schedule detention
Referral form is returned to the Senior Director or designee

Student conference with the Senior Director is scheduled

pg. 63



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Follow-up phone call from Administration is made when necessary

Harassment Complaints- Students are occasionally the victim of bullying or harassing behaviors. While
common in the school setting, such behaviors are not acceptable and will not be tolerated at any function
of our school community.

The following process is designed to assist students who believe they are the victim of such behaviors:
e Student informs teacher or staff person of situation

e Student reports to the office to complete a confidential “Harassment Complaint Form”

e Administrator investigates allegations

Typical consequences for a bully/harasser are as follows:

Warning- conference with Senior Director or designee discussing allegations, perceived intentions and
future consequences; student is informed that such behavior, as well as any retaliation, will not
be tolerated.

Parental Conference- Sharing the dangers of bully/harassing behaviors for both parties.

Suspension- To insure the safety of staff and students, various forms of suspension may be used in efforts to
correct student behavior.

Expulsion- If bullying/harassment continues or if any given incident is so severe that a safe learning
environment cannot exist, the Senior Director will recommend the expulsion of the offending
student.

— Monarch River Academy is committed to promoting learning and protecting the safety and well-being of
all students at the Charter School. In creating this policy, the Charter School has reviewed
Education Code Section 48900 et seq. which describes the non-charter schools’ list of offenses
and procedures to establish its list of offenses and procedures for suspensions and expulsions. The
language that follows closely mirrors the language of Education Code Section 48900 ef seq. The
Charter School is committed to annual review of policies and procedures surrounding suspensions
and expulsions and, as necessary, modification of the lists of offenses for which students are
subject to suspension or expulsion.

pg. 64



The purpose of the Monarch River Academy Governing Board approving this Suspension and Expulsion
Policy is to accomplish the following:

Establish the Responsibility of the Charter School
Identify the Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students
Identify Enumerated Offenses
Outline Suspension Procedures
Outline the Authority to Expel
Outline Expulsion Procedures
Outline Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses
Identify the Record of Hearing
Identify the Presentation of Evidence
. Outline the Written Notice to Expel
. Outline the Maintenance of Disciplinary Records
. Identify a Student’s Right to Appeal
. Outline Expelled Students/Alternative Education
. Outline Rehabilitation Plans
. Outline the Readmission Process

XN A WD =

—_— —
—_ O

—_—
wn B~ W N

[

Responsibility of the Charter School: When the policy is violated, it may be necessary to suspend or
expel a student from the Charter School. This policy shall serve as the Charter School’s policy and
procedures for student suspension and expulsion and it may be amended from time to time without
the need to amend the charter so long as the amendments comport with legal requirements. Charter
School staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently among all
students. This Policy and its Procedures will be printed and distributed as part of the Parent-Student
Handbook and will clearly describe discipline expectations. Corporal punishment shall not be used
as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction
of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes of the Policy,
corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that is reasonable and necessary
to protect the employee, students, staff, or other persons or to prevent damage to school property.

The Charter School administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians are notified in writing
upon enrollment of all discipline policies and procedures.

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities unless
otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.

pg. 65



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom the Charter School has a basis of knowledge
of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act
of 2004 (“IDEIA”) or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (“Section 504”) is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded
the same due process procedures applicable to general education students except when federal and
state law mandates additional or different procedures. The Charter School will follow all
applicable federal and state laws including but not limited to the California Education Code, when
imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an individual with disabilities or for
whom the Charter School has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise
qualified for such services or protections in according due process to such students. Additional
detail follows below.

2. Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students: A student may be suspended or expelled
for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to school activity or school attendance occurring at
any time including but not limited to: a) while on school grounds; b) while going to or coming
from school; ¢) during the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus; d) during, going
to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity.

3. Enumerated Offenses:
Discretionary Suspension Offenses. Students may be suspended for any of the following acts when it is
determined the student:
Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.

Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled
substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant
of any kind.

Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and
Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold,
delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented
same as controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant.

pg. 66



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.
Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.
Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.
Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited,
to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and
betel. This section does not prohibit the use of his or her own prescription products by a student.

Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.

Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.

Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of
their duties.

Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.
Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a

firearm.

Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266¢, 286,
288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school

disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or
retaliating against that student for being a witness.

pg. 67



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.

Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision, “hazing” means a
method of initiation or preinitiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the
organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause
serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a
former, current, or prospective student. For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include
athletic events or school-sanctioned events.

Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. For purposes of this section,
“terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully
threatens to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or
property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the
statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on
its face and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional,
immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an
immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in
sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for the
protection of school property, or the personal property of the person threatened or his or her
immediate family.

Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the purposes of this
section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the
same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon
the individual’s academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
educational environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in

subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This section shall apply to students in any
of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

pg. 68



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the extent of having
the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial
disorder and invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational
environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of an electronic
act.

1. “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts
committed by a student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or harassment,
threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has or can be
reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1.Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited
to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct
for a person of his or her age, or for a person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students
in fear of harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.
ii.Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect
on his or her physical or mental health.
iii.Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with his or
her academic performance.
iv.Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with his
or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by the
Charter School.

2. “Electronic Act” means the transmission by means of an electronic device, including, but not
limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or
pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

1.A message, text, sound, or image.
11.A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:

a. Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet Web site created for the
purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.

pg. 69



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

b. Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose of having one or more
of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to knowingly and
without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying the student and such that another
student would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student
who was impersonated.

C. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph
(1) above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious student or a profile using the likeness or
attributes of an actual student other than the student who created the false profile.

1ii.Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act
shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet
or is currently posted on the Internet.

A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or attempted
infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not expulsion,
except that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider
and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious
bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1).

Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession of any object of this
type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school
employee, with the Director or designee’s concurrence.

e Non-Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students must be suspended and recommended for expulsion
for any of the following acts when it is determined the student:

o Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous object unless,
in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission
to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Director or designee’s
concurrence.

pg. 70



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

e Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students may be recommended for expulsion for any of the following
acts when it is determined the student:

Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.

Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.

Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled
substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or
intoxicant of any kind.

Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and
Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold,
delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented
same as controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant.

Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.
Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.

Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.

Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited
to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and
betel. This section does not prohibit the use of his or her own prescription products by a student.

Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.

Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.

pg. 71



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of
their duties.

Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.

Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a
firearm.

Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school
disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or
retaliating against that student for being a witness.

Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.

Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision, “hazing” means a
method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the
organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause
serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a
former, current, or prospective student. For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include
athletic events or school-sanctioned events.

pg. 72



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. For purposes of this section, “terroristic
threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens to
commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property
damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to
be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and
under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and
specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of
execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or
her own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school property,
or the personal property of the person threatened or his or her immediate family.

Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the purposes of this
section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the
same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon
the individual’s academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
educational environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in
subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This section shall apply to students in any
of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the extent of having
the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial
disorder and invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational
environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of an electronic
act.

pg. 73



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Procedures

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and

“Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including acts one or more
acts committed by a student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or
harassment, threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has or
can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1.Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but
is not limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment
in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a person of his or her age with exceptional needs)
or students in fear of harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.
ii.Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially
detrimental effect on his or her physical or mental health.
iii.Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference
with his or her academic performance.
iv.Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference
with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided
by the Charter School.

“Electronic Act” means the transmission by means of an electronic device, including, but not
limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or
pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

1.A message, text, sound, or image.
11.A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not
limited to:

Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet Web site created for the

purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.
Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose of having one or more
of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to knowingly and
without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying the student and such that another
student would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student
who was impersonated.

pg. 74



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

c. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph
(1) above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious student or a profile using the likeness or
attributes of an actual student other than the student who created the false profile.

1. Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act
shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet
or is currently posted on the Internet.

A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or attempted
infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not expulsion,
except that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider
and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious
bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1).

Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession of any object of this
type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school
employee, with the Director or designee’s concurrence.

e Non-Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students must be recommended for expulsion for any of the
following acts when it is determined pursuant to the procedures below that the student:

Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous object unless, in the
case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission to
possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Director or designee’s concurrence.

If it is determined by the Board of Directors that a student has brought a fire arm or destructive device, as
defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code, on to campus or to have possessed a
firearm or dangerous device on campus, the student shall be expelled for one year, pursuant to the
Federal Gun Free Schools Act of 1994.

pg. 75



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

The term “firearm” means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily
be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (B) the frame or receiver of any
such weapon; (C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (D) any destructive device. Such term
does not include an antique firearm.

The term “destructive device” means (A) any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, including but not limited
to: (1) bomb, (ii) grenade, (iii) rocket having a propellant charge of more than four ounces, (iv)
missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, (v) mine, or (vi)
device similar to any of the devices described in the preceding clauses.

4. Suspension Procedure: Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:
Conference: Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Director or
the Director’s designee with the student and his or her parent and, whenever practical, the
teacher, supervisor or Charter School employee who referred the student to the Director or
designee.

The conference may be omitted if the Director or designee determines that an emergency situation exists.
An “emergency situation” involves a clear and present danger to the lives, safety or health of
students or Charter School personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the
parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student’s right to return to school for the
purpose of a conference.

At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the evidence
against him or her and shall be given the opportunity to present his or her version and evidence
in his or her defense. This conference shall be held within two school days, unless the student
waives this right or is physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to,
incarceration or hospitalization. No penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the
student’s parent or guardian to attend a conference with Charter School officials. Reinstatement
of the suspended student shall not be contingent upon attendance by the student’s parent or
guardian at the conference.

pg. 76



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, an administrator or designee shall make a
reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is
suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date of
return following suspension. This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the
student. In addition, the notice may also state the date and time when the student may return to
school. If Charter School officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters
pertinent to the suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such
requests without delay.

Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion: Suspensions, when not including a
recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5) consecutive school days per suspension.
Upon a recommendation of Expulsion by the Director or Director’s designee, the student and the
student’s guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the suspension
for the student should be extended pending an expulsion hearing. This determination will be
made by the Director or designee upon either of the following: 1) the student’s presence will be
disruptive to the education process; or 2) the student poses a threat or danger to others. Upon
either determination, the student’s suspension will be extended pending the results of an
expulsion hearing.

2. Authority to Expel: A student may be expelled either by the Charter School Board following a
hearing before it or by the Charter School Board upon the recommendation of an Administrative
Panel to be assigned by the Board as needed. The Administrative Panel should consist of at least
three members who are certificated and neither a teacher of the student or a Board member of the
Charter School’s governing board. The Administrative Panel may recommend expulsion of any
student found to have committed an expellable offense.

6. Expulsion Procedures: Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to
determine whether the student should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing
shall be held within thirty (30) school days after the Director or designee determines that the
Student has committed an expellable offense.

pg. 77



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

In the event an Administrative Panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the Board for a final

decision whether to expel. The hearing shall be held in closed session (complying with all
student confidentiality rules under FERPA) unless the Student makes a written request for a
public hearing three (3) days prior to the hearing.

Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student’s parent/guardian at least ten

b=

(10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing the notice, it shall be deemed
served upon the student. The notice shall include:

The date and place of the expulsion hearing;

A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is based;
A copy of the Charter School’s disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation;
Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about the
student’s status at the Charter School to any other school district or school to which the student
seeks enrollment;

The opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in person or to employ
and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor;

The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing;

The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing;

The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary evidence
on the student’s behalf including witnesses.

Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses:
The Charter School may, upon a finding of good cause, determine that the disclosure of either the
identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would subject the
witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this determination, the
testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations that
shall be examined only by the Charter School or the hearing officer. Copies of these sworn
declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be made available to the
student.

pg. 78



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a copy of the applicable
disciplinary rules and advised of his/her right to (a) receive five days’ notice of his/her scheduled
testimony, (b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of his/her choosing present in the hearing
at the time he/she testifies, which may include a parent, guardian, or legal counsel, and (c) elect to
have the hearing closed while testifying.

The Charter School must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room for the
complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony.

At the discretion of the entity conducting the expulsion hearing, the complaining witness shall be allowed
periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which he or she may leave the
hearing room.

The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the hearing room to
facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.

The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the testimony of the
complaining witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the
testimony during other hours.

Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the hearing is
confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the hearing from removing a
support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the hearing. The entity conducting
the hearing may permit any one of the support persons for the complaining witness to accompany
him or her to the witness stand.

pg. 79



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the Charter School must present evidence that the
witness’ presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to the Charter School. The
person presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness to stay unless it is established that there
is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining witness would be influenced by the
support person, in which case the presiding official shall admonish the support person or persons
not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in any way. Nothing shall preclude the presiding
officer from exercising his or her discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom he or she
believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness.

The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the complaining witness
and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom during that testimony.

Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in public at
the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness shall have the right to have
his/her testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would threaten
serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there are no alternative procedures to
avoid the threatened harm. The alternative procedures may include videotaped depositions or
contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing room by means of
closed-circuit television.

Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is presumed inadmissible
and shall not be heard absent a determination by the person conducting the hearing that
extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the evidence be heard. Before such a determination
regarding extraordinary circumstance can be made, the witness shall be provided notice and an
opportunity to present opposition to the introduction of the evidence. In the hearing on the
admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a
parent, legal counsel, or other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual
behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose.

pg. 80



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

8. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any
means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written
transcription of the proceedings can be made.

0. Presentation of Evidence: While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings,
evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable
persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Administrative Panel
to expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable
offense. Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay
evidence is admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay. Sworn declarations
may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of whom the Board or Administrative Panel
determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an
unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.

If, due to a written request by the expelled student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the charge is
committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as defined in
Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his or her
testimony heard in a session closed to the public.

The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a written
recommendation to the Board who will make a final determination regarding the expulsion. The
final decision by the Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the conclusion of
the hearing.

If the Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the student shall immediately be returned to
his/her educational program.

pg. 81



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Procedures

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and

10.

Written Notice to Expel: The Director or designee, following a decision of the Board to expel,
shall send written notice of the decision to expel, including the Board’s adopted findings of fact,
to the student or parent/guardian. This notice shall also include the following: (a) Notice of the
specific offense committed by the student; and (b) Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s
obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of the student’s status
with the Charter School.

The Director or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to the authorizer. This

11.

12.

13.

notice shall include the following: (a) The student’s name; and (b) The specific expellable offense
committed by the student.

Disciplinary Records: The Charter School shall maintain records of all student suspensions and
expulsions at the Charter School. Such records shall be made available to the authorizer upon
request.

Right to Appeal: Per AB 1360, a student being expelled or suspended will be provided “oral or
written notice of the charges against the student,” “an explanation of the evidence that supports
the charges and an opportunity for the student to present his or her side of the story,” and/or the
opportunity for “a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of days at
which the student has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and confront
and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the student has the right to bring legal counsel
or an advocate.” Moreover, for any non-voluntary removal, the student’s parent or guardian will
be given written notice of intent to remove the student no less than 5 school days in advance, and
the parent/guardian will be given the right to challenge the non-voluntary removal under the same
procedures as an expulsion.

Expelled Students/Alternative Education: Students who are expelled shall be responsible for
seeking alternative education programs including, but not limited to, programs within the County
or their school district of residence. The Charter School shall work cooperatively with
parents/guardians as requested by parents/guardians or by the school district of residence to assist
with locating alternative placements during expulsion.

pg. 82



14.

15.

Rehabilitation Plans: Students who are expelled from the Charter School shall be given a
rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion order,
which may include, but is not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of
review for readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from
the date of expulsion when the student may reapply to the Charter School for readmission.

Readmission: The decision to readmit a student or to admit a previously expelled student from
another school district or charter school shall be in the sole discretion of the Board following a
meeting with the Director or designee and the student and guardian or representative to
determine whether the student has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to
determine whether the student poses a threat to others or will be disruptive to the school
environment. The Director or designee shall make a recommendation to the Board following the
meeting regarding his or her determination. The student’s readmission is also contingent upon
the Charter School’s capacity at the time the student seeks readmission.

pg. 83



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section E: Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils - Ed Code 49079

Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

When the Senior Director at Monarch River Academy is aware that a student has caused or tried to cause
another person serious bodily injury, or any injury that requires professional medical treatment, a separate and
confidential file is created for that child. Information based upon written District records or records received
from a law enforcement agency are contained in the file.

When such a student is assigned to a teacher, the Senior Director shall provide the teacher with written
notification. The teacher is asked to review the student’s separate and confidential file in the office. Teachers
are informed that such information is to be kept in strictest confidence and is to disseminate no further.

Excerpts from the California Education Code and the California Penal Code are presented below.

From California Education Code Section 49079
(a) A school district shall inform the teacher of every student who has caused or who has attempted
to cause serious bodily injury to another person, as defined in paragraphs (5) and (6) of
subdivision (e) of Section 243 of the Penal Code, to another person. Monarch River Academy
shall provide the information to the teacher based on any written records that Monarch River
Academy maintains or receives from a law enforcement agency regarding a student described in
this section.

(b) No school district shall be liable for failure to comply with this section if, in a particular instance,
it is demonstrated that Monarch River Academy has made a good faith effort to notify the
teacher.

(©) The information provided shall be from the previous three (3) school years.

(d) Any information received by a teacher pursuant to this section shall be received in confidence for

the limited purpose for which it was provided and shall not be further disseminated by the
teacher.

pg. 84



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079

Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

From California Penal Code Section 243(e) — Paragraphs 5 and 6

(%) ... “Injury” means any physical injury which requires professional medical treatment.

(6) ...“Custodial Officer” means any person who has the responsibilities and duties and who is
employed by a law enforcement agency of the city or county or who performs those duties as a
volunteer.

Monarch River Academy — Employee Security

Notice Regarding Student Crimes and Offenses

The Senior Director or designee shall inform the teacher of every student who has engages in, or is reasonably
suspected to have engaged in, any act during the previous three years which could constitute grounds for
suspension or expulsion, with the exception of the possession or use of tobacco products. This
information shall be based upon written district records or records received from a law enforcement
agency. (California Education Code 49079).

When informed pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1 that a student has committed crimes unrelated
to school attendance which do not therefore constitute grounds for suspension or expulsion, the Senior
Director or designee may so inform any teacher, counselor or administrator whom he/she believes needs
this information in order to work with the student appropriately, avoid being needlessly vulnerable, or
protect others from needless vulnerability. The Senior Director or designee shall consult with the Senior
Director of the school which the student attends in order to identify staff that should be so informed.
(California Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1).

Teachers shall receive the above information in confidence and disseminate it no further.
(California Education Code 49079, California Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1).

The Senior Director or designee shall maintain the above information in a separate confidential file for each
student. When such a student is assigned to a class/program, the Senior Director or designee shall notify
the teacher in writing and ask the teacher to initial this notice, return it to the Senior Director or
designee, and review the student’s file in the school office. This notification shall not name or otherwise
identify the student.

The Senior Director or designee shall notify all certificated personnel who are likely to come into contact with
the student, including the student’s teachers, special education teachers, coaches and counselors.

pg. 85



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079

Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

From Monarch River Academy Employee Security (Continued)

The teacher shall initial the student’s file when reviewing it in the school office. Once Monarch River
Academy has made a good faith effort to comply with the notification requirement of Education Code
49079, a teacher’s failure to review the file may be construed as a waiver of Monarch River Academy’s

liability.

pg. 86



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 1: General Information

The administration, teachers and staff at Monarch River Academy actively strive to eliminate acts of
discrimination and sexual harassment at the school. All personnel are aware of the mandates from the State of
California, the California Department of Education, and the Board of Education of the Monarch River Academy
and support them fully. All personnel have received instruction regarding the recognition, prevention, and
reporting of acts of discrimination and sexual harassment. It is important that parents understand the provisions
regarding sexual harassment and, in particular, student-to-student harassment.

Monarch River Academy is committed to ensuring a professional work and learning environment without
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying on the basis of race, religious creed (including religious
dress and grooming practices), color, national origin (including language use restrictions), immigration status,
citizenship status, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information,
marital status, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy
or childbirth), gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military and veteran status, or
association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned characteristics or any other legally
protected category.

pg. 87



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 2: Sexual Harassment — All Personnel

Monarch River Academy
— Sexual Harassment

The Governing Board prohibits sexual harassment in the working environment of district employees or
applicants by any person in any form.

Employees who permit or engage in such harassment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including dismissal.

Any employee or applicant for employment who feels that he/she or another individual at Monarch
River Academy is being sexually harassed should immediately contact his/her supervisor, Senior
Director, other district administrator, or the Senior Director or designee in order to obtain procedures for
reporting a complaint.

Any supervisor who receives a harassment complaint shall notify the Senior Director or designee, who
shall ensure that the complaint is appropriately investigated.

The district prohibits retaliatory behavior against any complainant or any participant in the complaint
process. Each complaint of sexual harassment shall be promptly investigated in a way that respects the
privacy of all parties concerned.

Monarch River Academy - 4119.11,4219.11, 4319.11 — Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is a form of harassment based on sex, including sexual harassment, gender harassment and
harassment based on pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions. It generally involves unwanted
sexual advances, or visual, verbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature. This definition includes many
forms of offensive behavior and includes gender—based harassment of a person of the same sex as the
harasser. The following is a partial list of violations:

e Unwanted sexual advances

e Offering educational benefits in exchange for sexual favors

e Making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances

e Visual conduct: Leering, making sexual gestures, displaying of suggestive objects or pictures,
cartoons or posters
Verbal conduct: Making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs and jokes
Verbal sexual advances or propositions
Verbal abuse of a sexual nature, graphic verbal commentaries about an individual’s body, sexually
degrading words used to describe an individual, suggestive or obscene letters, notes or invitations

pg. 88



e Physical conduct: Touching, assault, impeding or blocking movements

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, or other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature made by someone from or in the
work or educational setting when:

1. Submission to the conduct is made either expressly or by implication in terms or condition of any
individual’s employment.

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for an
employment decision affecting the individual.

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work or
academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or
educational environment, or of adversely affecting the student or employee’s performance,
evaluation, advancement, assigned duties, or any other condition of education, employment or
career development.

4. Submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision
affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available
at or through the educational institution.

Other examples of sexual harassment, whether committed by a supervisor or any other employee, are:

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions.

2. Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually
degrading descriptions.

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual’s body, or overly personal conversation.

4. Sexual jokes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures.

5. Spreading sexual rumors.

6. Touching an individual’s body or clothes in a sexual way.

7. Cornering or blocking of normal movements.

8. Displaying sexually suggestive objects in the educational or work environment.

9. Any act of retaliation against an individual who reports a violation of Monarch River Academy’s

sexual harassment policy or who participates in the investigation of a sexual harassment.
Each Senior Director and supervisor has the responsibility of maintaining an educational and work environment

free of sexual harassment. This responsibility includes and/or discussing Monarch River Academy’s
sexual harassment policy with his/her students and/or employees and assuring them that they are not

pg. 89



required to endure sexually insulting, degrading, or exploitive treatment or any other form of sexual
harassment.

pg. 90



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 2: Sexual Harassment — All Personnel

Notifications

A copy of Monarch River Academy’s policy on Harassment in Employment shall:

1.

Be available, accessible, and displayed in a prominent location in the School’s digital manual.

Be provided to all staff members at the beginning of the first semester of the school year, or
whenever a new employee is hired.

Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school or district’s comprehensive
rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct.

All employees shall receive either a copy of information sheets prepared by the California Department of Fair
Employment and Housing or a copy of district information sheets that contain, at a minimum,
components on:

1.

The illegality of sexual harassment.

The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law.
A description of sexual harassment with examples.

The district’s complaint process available to the employee.

The legal remedies and complaint process available through the Fair Employment and Housing
Department and Commission.

Direction on how to contact the Fair Employment and Housing Department and Commission.

pg. 91



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 3: Sexual Harassment — Students

Monarch River Academy
— Sexual Harassment:

The Governing Board prohibits unlawful sexual harassment of or by any student by anyone in or from Monarch
River Academy.

Teachers shall discuss this policy with their students in age-appropriate ways and should assure them that they
need not endure any form of sexual harassment.

Any student who engages in the sexual harassment of anyone in or from Monarch River Academy may be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including expulsion. Any employee who permits or engages in
sexual harassment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

The Board expects students or staff to immediately report incidents of sexual harassment to the Senior Director
or designee or to another district administrator.

Any student who feels that he/she is being harassed should immediately contact the Senior Director or designee
or another district administrator in order to obtain a copy of AR 1312.3 — Uniform Complaint
Procedures. Complaints of harassment can be filed in accordance with these procedures.

The district prohibits retaliatory behavior against any complainant or any participant in the complaint process.

Each complaint of sexual harassment shall be promptly investigated in a way that respects the privacy of
all parties concerned.

Monarch River Academy
Sexual Harassment (5145.7)

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, and other verbal, visual, or physical conduct or a sexual nature when:

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of an individual’s
employment, academic status or progress.

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by an individual is used as the basis for academic or
employment decisions affecting the individual.

pg. 92



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 3: Sexual Harassment — Students

Other types of conduct which are prohibited in Monarch River Academy and which may constitute sexual

The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the individual’s academic or

work performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work
environment.

Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision

affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at

or through the school.

harassment include:

10.

11.

Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions.

Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually

degrading descriptions.

Graphic verbal comments about an individual’s body, or overly personal conversation.
Sexual jokes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures.

Spreading sexual rumors.

Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-sex class.
Touching an individual’s body or clothes in a sexual way.

Purposefully limiting a student’s access to educational tools.

Cornering or blocking of normal movements.

Displaying sexually suggestive objects in the educational environment.

Any act of retaliation against an individual who reports a violation of the district’s sexual
harassment policy or who participates in the investigation of a sexual harassment complaint.

pg. 93



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 3: Sexual Harassment — Students

Notifications

A copy of Monarch River Academy’s sexual harassment policy shall:
1. Be included in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year.
2. Be available, accessible, and displayed in a prominent location in the School’s digital manual.

3. Be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new students at the beginning of each
quarter, semester, or summer session.

4. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school or district’s comprehensive rules,
regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct.

Enforcement

The Senior Director or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce Monarch River Academy’s sexual
harassment policy. These actions may include:

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti.
2. Providing staff in service and student instruction or counseling.
3. Taking appropriate disciplinary action as needed.

pg. 94



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section G: School Dress Code, if it exists. CA Ed Code: Sections 32280-32289

Part 1: Non-classroom based program does not have a dress code.

pg. 95



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress

Part 1: General Information

Monarch River Academy — Safe Ingress and Egress

Monarch River Academy takes pride in providing a safe environment for all students, parents, and school
employees. Our School will take measures to ensure safe ingress and egress to and from school activities and
functions for pupils, parents, and school employees. Safe ingress and egress will be maintained by periodic
reviews of the procedures for ingress and egress. The school will ensure that all passageways to and from our
buildings, corridors within buildings and emergency exits remain clear of all obstruction to allow flow of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic. The school will also ensure that potential obstructions and hazards are
removed from such areas. To achieve this goal, the school works closely with local law enforcement agencies
and the local city government to ensure that the school’s immediate community is safe.

Through the joint efforts of Monarch River Academy office, site administrators, faculty, Safety Committee,
PTSA, and other organizations, including consultants, Monarch River Academy has developed a plan to ensure
the safe arrival and departure of students, staff, and visitors. Monarch River Academy encourages input from
our community and reviews this plan on an annual basis.

Any problems associated with safe ingress and egress will be addressed immediately.

pg. 96



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress

Part 2: Safe Ingress and Egress

Monarch River Academy — Safe Ingress and Egress
The following is a template to be completed by each local location.
There are X entrances and X exits at [Enter Information].
Open Close Open Close

Front of Location 6:30 am 6:00 pm

All adults are to enter from the front of the location. All visitors to the location must wear a badge to identify
themselves as visitors.

Whenever a safety issue is pending, all doors are locked immediately. For emergency situations, staff have
door keys to lock or unlock doors closest to them.

pg. 97



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Monarch River Academy — Bullying and Intimidation

The Monarch River Academy’s Board believes that all students have a right to a safe and healthy school
environment. To that end, Monarch River Academy, schools and community have an obligation to promote
mutual respect, tolerance, and acceptance. Monarch River Academy will not tolerate any act of intimidation
including direct physical contact, gestures, comments, threats or actions, either written, verbal or physical,
which cause, threaten to cause or are likely to cause bodily harm, social isolation, manipulation, or personal
degradation on any District campus, at any school activity whether on or off campus, while traveling to and
from school or a school sponsored activity, or during the lunch period, whether on or off campus.

The consequences of these actions may include a broad range of disciplinary measures as appropriate; however,
every effort will also be taken to provide or locate appropriate assistance for both the victim and the offender.

From Monarch River Academy Administrative Regulation 5131 - Conduct

Bullying occurs when one or more students threaten, harass, or intimidate another student through words, or
actions including continual direct physical contact such as hitting or shoving intentionally.

These incidents will be acted upon when they occur on the school grounds at any time, en route to and from
school or a school-sponsored activity, during the lunch period whether on or off campus.

A “school-related” or “school-sponsored” activity is an activity that is approved by the Senior Director or
his/her designee and supervised by assigned school personnel.

For the purpose of this administrative regulation, bullying is, but is not limited to, making unsolicited and
unwelcome written, verbal, physical and/or threatening visual gestures or contact.

Written — intimidating/threatening letters, notes, or messages

Verbal — intimidating/threatening comments, slurs, innuendos, teasing, jokes, or epithets
Visual — threatening gestures

Physical — hitting, slapping and/or pinching

pg. 98



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Monarch River Academy — Bullying and Intimidation
From Monarch River Academy - Conduct

Making reprisals, threats or reprisal, engaging in coercive behavior to negatively control, influence or affect the
health and well-being of a student.

Initial Response and Reporting Expectations
The District expects all employees, if they observe or become aware of an act of intimidation, to take
immediate, appropriate steps to intervene.

If, in the opinion of the employee, the matter has not been resolved, then the situation shall be reported to an
administrator for further investigation.

Monarch River Academy encourages students, parents and other community members who observe or become
aware of a serious act of intimidation to report this act to a school administrator for further investigation.

Investigation and Response

Any incident, which may constitute an act of intimidation and is reported to the Senior Director, shall be
thoroughly investigated by the site administrator or designee. Consequences shall be commensurate with the
results of the investigation. This may include, but is not limited to, counseling, parent conference, detention,
involuntary transfer, a formal suspension and/or expulsion of the offender. The parent or guardian shall be
contacted and may be asked to attend a conference with school officials.

If the parent or guardian does not attend the conference, the site administrator shall send a letter informing the
parent of the actions under consideration and notifying parent of all data pertinent to the action.

Depending on the severity of the incident, the administrator shall take appropriate steps to insure campus safety.
This may include any or all of the following: Implement an immediate safety plan; isolate and supervise
involved students; provide staff support for involved students as necessary; report incident to law enforcement
if appropriate; notify the parents/guardians of both the offender and the victim and develop supervision plan
with parents.

If the act of intimidation is deemed to warrant a suspension, expulsion, or involuntary transfer to another school,

then the matter will be processed in accordance with the board policies and [Enter Applicable Administrative
Regulation] pertaining to the suspension/expulsion due process.

pg. 99



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Monarch River Academy — Bullying and Intimidation

Assessment and Intervention

An administrative contact will be made with the victim and offender prior to resuming regular schedule of
classes. If deemed necessary, the administrator or designee may convene a multidisciplinary team to further
assess and determine the need for ongoing support for the victim of the offender.

Depending upon the severity of the intimidation, an investigation may include a review of school records,
identification of parent/family issues, and interview with students, parents, and school staff. A multi-
disciplinary team consisting of school staff, counselor/psychologist, parent, student, and other agency personnel
as appropriate, shall develop a behavior support plan.

The support plan may include any or all of the following: a case manager (special education staff), counseling
services (site, and/or community resources), parenting skills classes, and other additional support services as
deemed appropriate. The case manager will maintain a record of the services provided.

Each site will identify community resources to be used before, during and after incidents of intimidation.
School Follow-up

The case manager has a responsibility to follow up and evaluate the behavior support plan. The case manager
will compile a report to the site administrator on the process, resources used, and the follow up procedure
involving the victim and the offender.

A copy of the behavior plan and follow-up report will then be forwarded to the Coordinator of Pupil Services.

Retaliation Prohibited
Retaliation against a student who reports or witnesses bullying is strictly prohibited and is ground for discipline.

Mandated Notification

At the beginning of the school year, each student shall receive an age-appropriate summary of the board policy
prohibiting intimidation.

pg. 100



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Monarch River Academy Monarch River Academy — Bullying and Intimidation

An age-appropriate summary of the anti-intimidation board policy shall be part of new student orientation
programs and included in student handbooks or informational packets.

A summary of the anti-intimidation board policy shall be included as part of Monarch River Academy’s annual
notification of parents.

Each staff member shall be notified of Monarch River Academy’s anti-intimidation board policy.

The District’s anti-intimidation board policy shall be included in each school’s comprehensive school safety
plan.

pg. 101



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 1: Mental Health Guidelines

Mental Health Guidelines

The Governing Board of recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth and that an even
greater amount of youth consider (17 percent of high school students) and attempt suicide (over 8 percent of
high school students) (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2015).

The possibility of suicide and suicidal ideation requires vigilant attention from our school staff. As a result, we
are ethically and legally responsible for providing an appropriate and timely response in preventing suicidal
ideation, attempts, and deaths. acknowledges the school’s role in providing an environment which is sensitive
to individual and societal factors that place youth at greater risk for suicide and one which works to create a safe
and nurturing culture that minimizes suicidal ideation in students.

Recognizing that it is the duty of to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its students, this policy aims to
safeguard students and staff against suicide attempts, deaths and other trauma associated with suicide, including
ensuring adequate supports for students, staff, and families affected by suicide attempts and loss. As it is known
that the physical, behavioral and emotional health of students greatly impacts school attendance and educational
success, this policy shall be paired with other practices that support the emotional and behavioral wellness of
students.

In an attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the Senior Director or
designee shall develop strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and post-intervention, and the
identification of the mental health challenges frequently associated with suicidal thinking and behavior. These
strategies shall include professional development for all school personnel in all job categories who regularly
interact with students or are in a position to recognize the risk factors and warning signs of suicide, including
substitute teachers, volunteers, expanded learning staff and any other individuals in regular contact with
students.

The Senior or designee shall develop and implement preventive strategies and intervention procedures that

include prevention, staff development, developmentally - appropriate programs, intervention, assessment and
referral, and parent/ student notification.

pg. 102



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

- Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

The Governing Board of recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth and that an even
greater amount of youth consider (17 percent of high school students) and attempt suicide (over 8 percent of
high school students) (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2015).

The possibility of suicide and suicidal ideation requires vigilant attention from our school staff. As a result, we
are ethically and legally responsible for providing an appropriate and timely response in preventing suicidal
ideation, attempts, and deaths. acknowledges the school’s role in providing an environment which is sensitive
to individual and societal factors that place youth at greater risk for suicide and one which works to create a safe
and nurturing culture that minimizes suicidal ideation in students.

Recognizing that it is the duty of the to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its students, this policy aims to
safeguard students and staff against suicide attempts, deaths and other trauma associated with suicide, including
ensuring adequate supports for students, staff, and families affected by suicide attempts and loss. As it is known
that the physical, behavioral and emotional health of students greatly impacts school attendance and educational
success, this policy shall be paired with other practices that support the emotional and behavioral wellness of
students.

In an attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the Senior Director or
Designee shall develop strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, and the identification of
the mental health challenges frequently associated with suicidal thinking and behavior. These strategies shall
include professional development for all school personnel in all job categories who regularly interact with
students or are in a position to recognize the risk factors and warning signs of suicide, including substitute
teachers, volunteers, expanded learning staff and any other individuals in regular contact with students.

The Senior or designee shall develop and implement preventive strategies and intervention procedures that
include the following:

pg. 103



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

- Policy Implementation

sta%pemeﬂ—"Phedistﬂet—s&ﬁe}d%pfeveﬁt}e&eeefdmater—The Mental Health Tearn w111 be respons1ble for

planning and coordinating implementation of these regulations for the school .

point of contact for issues relating to sulclde preventlon and policy implementation. All staff members shall
report students they believe to be at elevated risk for suicide to the school mental health/suicide prevention
coordinator.

Staff Professional Development:

All staff will receive annual professional development to include, but not limited to: risk factors, warning signs,
protective factors, response procedures, referrals, postvention, and resources regarding youth suicide
prevention.

seheel—&&r—ses— The professional development Wlll 1nclude addltlonal 1nf0rmat10n regardlng groups of students
at elevated risk for suicide, including those living with mental and/or substance use disorders, those who engage
in self-harm or have attempted suicide, those in out-of-home settings, those experiencing homelessness,
LGBTQ students, students bereaved by suicide and those with medical conditions or certain types of
disabilities.

Youth Suicide Prevention Programming:

Developmentally-appropriate, student-centered suicide prevention education may be incorporated into
classroom curricula. The content of these age-appropriate materials may include, but is not limited to: the
district’s suicide prevention, intervention, and referral procedures, the importance of safe and healthy choices

pg. 104



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

and coping strategies, how to recognize risk factors and warning signs of mental disorders and suicide in oneself
and others, help-seeking strategies for oneself or others, including how to engage school resources and refer
friends for help. In addition, schools may provide supplemental small group suicide prevention programming
for students.

Publication and Distribution:

The administrative regulations will be distributed annually and included in all student and teacher handbooks
and on the school website.

Employee Qualifications and Scope of Services

Employees of must act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license. While it is
expected that school professionals are able to identify suicide risk factors and warning signs, and to prevent the
immediate risk of a suicidal behavior, treatment of suicidal ideation is typically beyond the scope of services
offered in the school setting. In addition, treatment of the mental health challenges often associated with
suicidal thinking typically requires mental health resources beyond what schools are able to provide.

Specialized Staff Training (Assessment)

Additional professional development in suicide risk assessment and crisis intervention shall be provided to
mental health professionals including, but not limited to the following: school counselors, school psychologists,
sectal-workers-and-nurses employed by .

Parents, Guardians, and Caregivers Participation and Education

To the extent possible, parents/guardians/caregivers should be included in all suicide prevention efforts. At a
minimum, the suicide prevention policy shall be prominently displayed in the parent handbook.

All parents/guardians/caregivers should have access to suicide prevention training that includes, but is not

limited to the following: suicide risk factors, warning signs, and protective factors, How to talk with a student
about thoughts of suicide, how to respond appropriately to the student who has suicidal thoughts.

pg. 105



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Intervention, Assessment, Referral

Staff

When a student is identified by a staff person as potentially suicidal, i.e., verbalizes about suicide, presents overt
risk factors such as agitation or intoxication, the act of self-harm occurs, or a student self-refers, the parent,
teacher, Student Support Team, and possibly the student will be contacted by a Mental Health Team within the
same school day to assess risk and/or facilitate referral.

1. School staff will recommend that the student is continuously supervised to ensure their safety.

2. The Mental Health Team and/or Student Support Team(s) will be informed and alerted of the situation as
soon as reasonably possible through one or more of the following:

e Email the Mental Health Team at: mentalhealthteam(@jinspireschools.org
e Complete the Mental Health Team’s At-Risk Survey: Student Mental Health Risk Report
e Complete the Student Support Team’s Crisis Survey: Student in Crisis

3. The Mental Health Team and Student Support Team will contact the reporting school staff, as well as the
student’s parent or guardian, and will provide community-based resources and recommendations. When
appropriate, this may include calling emergency services or bringing the student to the local hospital emergency
department.

Designated members of the Mental Health Team should conduct a suicide risk assessment. The purpose of
the assessment is to determine the level of risk and to identify the most appropriate actions to ensure the
immediate and long-term safety and well-being of the student. This should be done by a team that includes a
school-employed mental health professional.

Caregiver notification is a vital part of suicide prevention. The appropriate caregiver(s) must always be
contacted when signs of suicidal thinking and behavior are observed. Typically this is the student's parent(s);
however, when child abuse is suspected protective services should be contacted. Even if a child is judged to be
at low risk for suicidal behavior, schools may ask caregivers to sign a form to indicate that relevant information

pg. 106


mailto:mentalhealthteam@inspireschools.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSd4zgZdUxwQWPs9chRf2_KdnGtNpVgSoRU6Yogn86Lvd2ToIw/viewform?pli=1
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSf2qcbLCba20RZ3-hXbukkB6vo5fAxU4RWUukNCNfEUC0aykg/viewform

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

has been provided. Regardless, all caregiver notifications must be documented. Caregivers also provide critical
information in determining level of risk. Whether a student is in imminent danger or not, it is strongly
recommended that lethal means are (i.e. guns, poisons, medications, and sharp objects) are removed or made
inaccessible.

Refer to community services if warranted. Referral options to 24 hour community-based services should be
identified in advance. It is best to obtain a release from the primary caregiver to facilitate the sharing of
information between the school and community agency.

Risk Level I (Low):

Definition: Does not pose imminent danger to self; insufficient evidence for suicide potential.

Indicators: Passing thoughts of suicide; no plan; no previous attempts; no access to weapons or means; no
recent losses; support system is in place; no alcohol/substance abuse; some depressed mood/affect; evidence of
thoughts found in notebook, internet postings, drawings; sudden changes in personality/behavior (e.g.,
distracted, hopeless, academically disengaged)

Risk Level II (Moderate)

Definition: May pose imminent danger to self, but there is insufficient evidence to demonstrate a viable plan of
action to do harm.

Indicators: Thoughts of suicide; plan with some specifics; unsure of intent; previous attempts and/or
hospitalization; difficulty naming future plans; past history of substance use, with possible current intoxication;
self-injurious behavior; recent trauma (e.g., loss, victimization)

Risk Level III (High):

Definition: Poses imminent danger to self with a viable plan to do harm; exhibits extreme and/or persistent
inappropriate behaviors; sufficient evidence for violence potential; qualifies for immediate arrest or
hospitalization.

Indicators: Current thoughts of suicide; plan with specifics, indicating when, where and how; access to weapons
or means in hand; finalizing arrangements (e.g., giving away prized possessions, good bye messages in writing,
text, on social networking sites); isolated and withdrawn; current sense of hopelessness; previous attempts; no
support system; currently abusing alcohol/substances; mental health history; precipitating events, such as loss of
loved one, traumatic event or bullying.

pg. 107



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Risk Level Interventions and Follow-Up

DO NOT LEAVE THE STUDENT UNSUPERVISED

RL I Action (Low):

1. CONSULT WITH A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL.

2. Contact parent/guardian/caregiver and give resources when appropriate.

3. Implement Interventions I.E., Student no harm promise and Plan, identify support systems on and off
campus.

4. Document student and parent contact and place in confidential file.

5. Contact CPS if suspected abuse.

6. Complete confidential Suicide assessment risk form.

7. Consider whether student may have a disability and/or may need referral for additional services.

RL IT Action (Moderate):

1. CONSULT WITH A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL.

2. Notify and/or hand off student ONLY to parent/guardian/caregiver who commits to seek an immediate
mental health assessment or to law enforcement if parent is unavailable or uncooperative. Consider any
suspected child abuse or neglect prior to contacting parent/guardian.

3. If parent transports students to mental health facility have parent sign Parent  Notification Form.

4. Document student and parent contact and place in confidential file.

5. Complete follow-up with student and parent when student returns.

6. Contact CPS if suspected abuse.

7. Complete confidential Suicide assessment risk form.

8. Consider whether student may have a disability and/or may need referral for additional services.

pg. 108



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

RL IIT Action (High):

1. CONSULT WITH A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL.

2. Notify and/or hand off student ONLY to parent/guardian/caregiver who commits to seek an immediate
mental health assessment or to law enforcement if parent is unavailable or uncooperative. Consider any
suspected child abuse or neglect prior to contacting parent/guardian.

3. Contact law enforcement. Law enforcement will determine if the parent will transport student to mental
health evaluation center or police may arrange for transportation to the mental health evaluation center.

3. Complete mental health evaluator form.

4. If parent transports students to mental health facility have parent sign Parent  Notification Form.

5. Complete confidential Suicide assessment risk form.

6. If police arrange for transport, notify site administrator.

7. Document student and parent contact.
8
9
1

. Consider whether student may have a disability and/or may need referral for additional services.
. Contact CPS if suspect abuse.
0. Follow procedures for re-entry to School After a Suicide Attempt.

As appropriate, consider an assessment for special education or a 504 Accommodation plan for a student whose
behavioral and emotional needs affect their ability to benefit from their educational program.

pg. 109



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Document all actions

The suicide-prevention—eoordinator Mental Health Team shall maintain records and documentation of actions
taken at the school for each case.

Notes, documents and records related to the incident are considered confidential information and remain
privileged to authorized personnel. These documents should be kept in a confidential file separate and apart

from the student’s cumulative records.

If the student transfers to a school within or outside the sending school may contact the receiving school to
share information and concerns, as appropriate, to facilitate a successful supportive transition.

Supporting Students after a Mental Health Crisis

It is crucial that careful steps are taken to help provide the mental health support for the student and to monitor
their actions for any signs of suicide. The following steps should be implemented after the crisis:

Treat every threat with seriousness and approach with a calm manner; make the student a priority.
Listen actively and non-judgmental to the student. Let the student express his or her feelings.
Acknowledge the feelings and do not argue with the student.

Offer hope and let the student know they are safe and that help is provided. Do not promise confidentiality or
cause stress.

Explain calmly and get the student to a trained professional, school psychologist, school counselor, or
designated staff to further support the student.

Keep close contact with the parents/guardians/caregivers and mental health professionals working with the
student.

pg. 110



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Students

Each school site and program within shall identify, disseminate and prominently display a process for students
to safely notify a staff member when they are experiencing emotional distress or suicidal ideation, or when they
suspect or have knowledge of another student’s emotional distress, suicidal ideation, or attempt.

Parental Notification and Involvement

Each school within shall identify a process to ensure continuing care for the student identified to be at risk of
suicide. The following steps should be followed to ensure continuity of care:

After a referral is made for a student, school staff shall verify with the Parent/guardian/caregiver that follow-up
treatment has been accessed. Parents/guardians/caregivers will be required to provide documentation of care for
the student prior to returning to school.

If parents/guardians/caregivers refuse or neglect to access treatment for a student who has been identified to be
at-risk for suicide or in emotional distress, the suicide prevention coordinator, administrator or other mental
health professional will meet with the parents/guardians/caregivers to identify barriers to treatment (e.g.,
cultural stigma, financial issues) and work to rectify the situation and build understanding of the importance of
care. If follow-up care for the student is still not provided, school staff should consider contacting Child
Protective Services (CPS) to report neglect of the youth.

A written authorization to exchange/release information should be completed by the
parents/guardians/caregivers and appropriate school staff (e.g., school psychologist, school counselor and/or
nurse) should consult with outside mental health or medical treatment team.

Action Plan for In-School Suicide Attempts
Each school site and program within shall follow the following action plan to immediately address in school
suicide attempts. If a suicide attempt is made during the school day on campus, it is important to remember that

the health and safety of the student and those around him/her is critical. The urgency of the situation will dictate
the order and applicability in which the subsequent steps are followed:

pg. 111



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Remain calm, remember the student is overwhelmed, confused, and emotionally distressed.
Move all other students out of the immediate area.

Immediately contact the administrator and suicide prevention coordinator.

Call 911 and give them as much information about the situation as possible.

If needed, provide medical first aid until a medical professional is available.
Parents/guardians/caregivers should be contacted as soon as possible.

Do not send the student away or leave them alone, even if they need to go to the restroom.
Listen and prompt the student to talk.

Review options and resources of people who can help.

Be comfortable with moments of silence as you and the student will need time to process the situation.
Provide comfort to the student.

Promise privacy and help, and be respectful, but do not promise confidentiality.

Student should only be released to parents/guardians/caregivers or to a person who is qualified and trained to
provide help.

Follow procedures for re-entry to School After a Suicide Attempt.

pg. 112



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Action Plan for OQut-of-School Suicide Attempts

If a suicide attempt by a student is outside of property, it is crucial to protect the privacy of the student and
maintain a confidential record of the actions taken to intervene, support, and protect the student. The following
steps should be implemented:

Contact the parents/guardians/caregivers and offer support to the family.

Discuss with the family how they would like the school to respond to the attempt while minimizing widespread
rumors among teachers, staff, and students.

Obtain permission from the parents/guardians/caregivers to share information to ensure the facts regarding the
crisis is correct.

Designate a staff member to handle media requests.
Provide care and determine appropriate support to affected students.

Follow procedures for re-entry to School After a Suicide Attempt.

Re-Entry to School After a Suicide Attempt

A student who threatened or attempted suicide is at a higher risk for suicide in the months following the crisis.
Having a streamlined and well planned re-entry process ensures the safety and wellbeing of students who have
previously attempted suicide and reduces the risk of another attempt. An appropriate re-entry process is an
important component of suicide prevention. Involving students in planning for their return to school provides
them with a sense of control, personal responsibility, and empowerment.

A student returning to school following hospitalization, including psychiatric and drug or alcohol inpatient
treatment, must have written permission by the health care provider in order to attend school.

A written authorization to exchange/release information should be completed by the

parents/guardians/caregivers and appropriate school staff (e.g., school psychologist, school counselor and/or
nurse) should consult with the outside mental health or medical treatment team.

pg. 113



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

If the student has been out of school for any length of time, including mental health hospitalization, the school
site administrator or designee should hold a re-entry meeting with key support staff, parent/guardian/caregiver
and student to facilitate a successful transition back into school.

The re-entry meeting should include a review of the authorization for return and documentation provided by the
outside mental health or medical treatment team.

The documentation provided should be considered in the development of a student safety plan for re-entry.

The school team should confer with student and parents/guardians/caregivers about any specific requests on
how to handle the re-entry.

Inform the student’s teachers about possible days of absences.

Allow accommodations for student to make up work (be understanding that missed assignments may add stress
to student).

Mental health professionals or trusted staff members should maintain ongoing contact to monitor student’s
actions and mood as part of the student safety plan.

Work with parents/guardians/caregivers to involve the student in an aftercare plan.

POSTVENTION

A death by suicide in the school community (whether by a student or staff member) can have devastating
consequences on students and staff. Therefore, it is vital to be prepared ahead of time in the event of such a
tragedy. The following are general procedures for the school administrator/director in the event of a completed
suicide:

Gather pertinent information

Confirm cause of death is the result of suicide, if this information is available.

Identify staff member to be the point of contact with the family of the deceased.

Information about the cause of death should not be disclosed to the school community until the family has been
consulted and has consented to disclosure.

pg. 114



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Assemble district crisis response team

District crisis response team to determine initial response procedures and obtain consultation regarding number
of personnel needed for initial response. It is helpful to have the following information available for
consultation:

-Demographic information

-Siblings (If any within)

-School Profile

-Known friends/groups

-Identification of additional high risk students

Staff notification

Concerns and wishes of family members regarding disclosure of the death and cause of death should always be
taken into consideration when providing facts to students, staff and parents. Some actions to consider:

Assess the extent and degree of psychological trauma and impact to the school community
Establish a plan to notify staff of death, once consent is obtained by the family of the deceased.
Notification of staff is recommended as soon as possible (In person if possible).

To dispel rumors, share accurate information and all known facts about the death.

Emphasize that no one event is to blame for suicide. Suicide is complex and cannot be simplified by blaming
individuals, drugs, music and/or school.

Allow staff to express their own reactions and grief; identify anyone who may need additional support and
provide resources.

Student notification and support

Concerns and wishes of family members regarding disclosure of the death and cause of death should always be
taken into consideration when providing facts to students, staff and parents. Some actions to consider:

pg. 115



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Notification of students should be done in small group settings, such as in the classroom. Do not notify students
using a public announcement system.

To the extent possible, students should be notified in the same time period to minimize rumors.

When possible, the news should be delivered by staff with whom the students are most familiar and
comfortable.

Provide staff with a scripted notification of death for students and

Prepare staff for potential reactions and questions. Review student support plan making sure to clarify
procedures and locations for crisis counseling.

Define triage procedures for students and staff who may need additional support in coping with the death.
Identify a lead crisis response staff member to assist with coordination of crisis counseling and support services.
Identify locations on campus to provide crisis counseling to students, staff and parents, as needed.

Identify a mental health professional (School psychologist or school counselor) to check in with students
previously identified to be at risk for suicide.

Request substitute teachers, as needed.
Maintain sign-in sheets and documentation on individual’s services for follow up, as needed.

Provide students, staff or parents/guardians/caretakers with after-hours resource numbers such as the 24/7
Suicide Prevention Crisis Line.

Refer students or staff who require a higher level of care for additional services such as a community mental

health provider, or their health care provider. Indicators of students and staff in need of additional support
and/or referral may include the following:

pg. 116



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Persons with close connections to the deceased.

Persons who have experienced a loss over the past six months to a year, a traumatic event, have witnessed acts
of violence, or have a history of suicide (Self or family member).

Persons who appear emotionally over-controlled (e.g., a student who was very close to the deceased but who is
exhibiting no emotional reaction to the loss) or those who are angry when majority are expressing sadness.

Persons unable to control crying

Persons with multiple traumatic experiences may have strong reactions that require additional assistance.
Document

School administration shall maintain records and documentation of actions taken at the school site.
Monitor and manage

School administration with support from the district crisis team should monitor and manage the situation as it
develops to determine follow up actions and continued support plans.

Communicate with the larger school community about the suicide death;

Consider funeral arrangements for family and school community;

Respond to memorial requests in respectful and non-harmful manner; responses should be handed in a
thoughtful way and their impact on other students should be considered. Memorials or dedications to a student

who has died by suicide should not glamorize or romanticize either the student or the death.

Identify and monitor social media platforms students are using to respond to the suicide. Encourage parents to
monitor internet postings regarding the death, including the deceased personal profile pages.

pg. 117



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Monarch River Academy

Section K: Crime Assessment

Part 1: Crime Assessment

In compliance with SB 187 and SB 334, will compile statistics pertaining to school crime committed at our
locations and at school-related functions. The school will complete a California Safe Schools Assessment —
School Crime Reporting Form for each incident that occurs. Copies of these forms shall be inserted in the
Appendix this plan. The school will also insert an annual breakdown of incidents, by month. Information
obtained will assist the school and in developing programs to reduce the incidence of crime on campus.

pg. 118



	ADPCD40.tmp
	1. Definitions:
	 Homeless children and youths means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence and includes children and youths:
	2. Homeless Liaison Responsibilities: The Charter School’s homeless liaison is required to do all of the following:
	3. Enrollment Admission: All homeless students are required to follow the school’s process for enrolling admitting students, including filling out and submitting the school’s enrollment packet on time.  As with all students, enrollment admission depen...
	If the homeless student seeking admission to enroll is unable to produce records normally required for admission enrollment, such as previous academic records, medical records, proof of residency or other documentation, this will not serve as a basis ...
	If the student needs to obtain immunizations, or immunization or medical records, the School will immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student, or the unaccompanied youth, to the Homeless Liaison, who shall assist in obtaining necessary imm...
	A homeless student shall be allowed to continue his or her education in the school of origin through the duration of homelessness.  If the homeless student’s status changes before the end of the academic year so that the student is no longer homeless,...
	4. Enrollment Admission Disputes and the Dispute Resolution Process: If a dispute arises over enrollment admission in the Charter School of a homeless student, the student will be immediately enrolled to the Charter School in which enrollment admissio...
	The Charter School will refer the student and/or his/her parents or guardians to the Homeless Liaison, who will carry out the dispute resolution in accordance with the process set forth below, as expeditiously as possible after receiving notice of the...
	Parents, guardians and unaccompanied youth may provide written or oral documentation to support their positions about enrollment admission and may seek assistance of social services, advocates, and/or service providers in the dispute process.
	The Charter School will provide the parent or guardian of the student with a written explanation of the Charter School’s decision regarding enrollment admission, including the rights of the parent, guardian or unaccompanied youth’s appeal the decision...
	If the dispute remains unresolved at the Charter School level or is appealed, then the Charter School Homeless Liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the homeless liaison at the county office of education (COE).  The C...
	If the dispute remains unresolved at the COE level or is appealed to the State, then the COE homeless liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the State Homeless Coordinator.  Upon review, the CDE will notify the parent/...
	6. Comparable Education Services: Each homeless student will be provided access to services comparable to services offered to other students in the Charter School, including but not limited to the following:
	7. Coursework and Graduation Requirements:   The School shall accept coursework satisfactorily completed by a homeless student while attending another public school, a juvenile courts school, a charter school, a school in a country other than the Unit...
	A complaint for noncompliance with this section may be filed with the School under the School’s Uniform Complaint Procedures.

	DRAFT Comprehensive Safety Plan - Monarch River.pdf
	 Monarch River Academy
	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 1: District Commitment to School Safety

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 2: Legislative Requirements

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 3: Maintaining a Safe and Orderly Environment

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 4: Criminal Background Check

	CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section C: Emergency/Disaster Plans - Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220 ADA
	Part 1: General Information - Disaster
	Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault
	Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures
	Part 4: Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident
	Part 5: Earthquake Procedures
	Part 6: Explosion, Aircraft Crash or Similar Incident 
	Part 7: Fire Procedures
	Part 8: Flood Procedures
	Part 9: Lockdown/Civil Unrest Procedures
	Part 10: Severe Windstorm Procedures

	This Emergency Action Plan is being developed to provide information to the staff at Monarch River Academy to ensure pertinent information is available in the case of an incident that warrants a response.  It is written in accordance with California C...
	The following Standard Operating Procedures have been developed to address a multitude of incidents that could occur at a school office or student location.  This is a living document that should be updated and modified as additional information is ac...
	EVACUATION PROCEDURES
	LOCKDOWN/REVERSE EVACUATION PROCEDURES
	PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING A “SIZE-UP”
	1.  Gather Facts:
	2.  Assess and Communicate the Damage:
	3. Consider Probabilities:
	4. Assess Your Own Situation:
	5.  Establish Priorities:
	6.  Make Decisions:
	7. Develop an INCIDENT ACTION PLAN:
	8.  Take Action:
	9.  Evaluate Progress:

	BOMB THREAT
	TELEPHONE BOMB THREAT
	E-MAIL BOMB THREAT

	FIRE/EXPLOSION
	FIRE DRILL PROCEDURES
	POSTING OF EVACUATION ROUTES
	FIRE/EXPLOSION CHECKLIST

	EARTHQUAKE
	IF INDOORS
	IN VEHICLE:
	GENERAL GUIDELINES (AFTER THE QUAKE):

	SHOOTING/STABBINGS
	IMMINENT WARNING SIGNS REQUIRE AN IMMEDIATE RESPONSE AND MAY INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING
	WHAT TO DO IF A SHOOTING/STABBING OCCURS AT THE SCHOOL OFFICE
	IF STAFF ARE OUTSIDE, THEY SHOULD BE TRAINED AND/OR INSTRUCTED TO
	SCENE OF INCIDENT

	DEATH AND/OR SUICIDE
	DEATH OCCURS AT SCHOOL
	IF THE OFFICE IS TAKEN HOSTAGE
	WHEN THE HOSTAGE LOCATION IS OTHER THAN AN OFFICE
	WHILE WAITING FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
	ONCE LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES
	THE SITE EMERGENCY TEAM SHOULD MAKE PLANS TO
	UNDERSTANDING NONVERBAL MESSAGES
	SEND THE RIGHT NONVERBAL MESSAGES
	ATTEMPT TO USE PHRASES SUCH AS:
	WHAT TO DO:

	CHEMICAL RELEASE/ HAZARDOUS MATERIAL SPILL
	HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OFFICE PREPARE?
	HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OR DISTRICT RESPOND?

	MEDICAL EMERGENCY
	SOME EMERGENCY PREVENTION/PREPAREDNESS GUIDELINES
	WHAT TO DO IF A MEDICAL EMERGENCY OCCURS

	GAS ODOR/LEAK
	GAS ODOR OR LEAK INSIDE A BUILDING
	IF GAS ODOR OR LEAK IS DETECTED OUTSIDE THE BUILDING

	SHELTER-IN-PLACE PROCEDURES
	Why You Might Need to Shelter-In-Place
	Following Are Actions to Follow at Your Worksite:
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan


	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions Policies and Procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section E: Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Part  1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

	Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 1: General Information

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 2: Sexual Harassment – All Personnel

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 3: Sexual Harassment – Students

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section G: School Dress Code, if it exists.  CA Ed Code: Sections 32280-32289
	Part 1: Non-classroom based program does not have a dress code.

	Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress
	Part 1: General Information
	Part 2: Safe Ingress and Egress

	Section I: Bullying and Intimidation
	Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

	Section K: Crime Assessment
	Part 1: Crime Assessment



